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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from

or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any

statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 November 2020.

REVIEW

The Group’s operation is mainly located in Malaysia. The Group has
provided system integration and computer related services since
2006 and continuously diversified our business to general trading
services in relation to IT services and provision of management
advice and consultancy services regarding computer softwares
and information technology. The Group provided IT services to both
private and public sectors and our customers include banks and
financial institutions, government and statutory bodies, education
institutions, IT services firms, software principals and other small and

medium enterprises.

During the year ended 30 November 2020, it was a challenging
year to the Group. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic gives
rise to a challenging and uncertain economic environment to
the global market and creates prolonged adverse impacts on all
businesses. In Malaysia, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
the implementation of nationwide Movement Control Order (“MCQ”)
by the Malaysian Government caused significant impacts on the
business operation. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic affected
the negotiation of new projects and delayed the progress of existing
projects of the Group. The Group will stay alert to the development
and situation of the COVID-19 pandemic, continue to assess its
impacts on the financial position and operating results of the Group

and take necessary action to maintain stability of the businesses.

For the year ended 30 November 2020, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately RM11.2 million compared to a profit of approximately
RM1.3 million for the corresponding year of 2019. The Group’s
revenue decreased by 48.5% to approximately RM10.0 million as
compared to the Group’s revenue of approximately RM19.4 million for
the corresponding year of 2019. The loss and decrease in revenue

was mainly due to (i) the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

implementation of MCO by the Malaysian Government since March
2020 which have seriously hindered the seeking out of potential
customers and negotiation and securing of new projects, and caused
the delay of completion of existing projects as customers slowed
down the project progress; (ii) the completion of several substantial
projects as well as the intense competition in securing new projects;
(iii) the increase in staff costs for the works of tendering new projects
and staff costs for directors and general administrative staff after
listing; and (iv) the increase in amortisation of and the impairment loss

on intangible assets.

In light of the worsening situation of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
head of state of Malaysia has issued a Proclamation of Emergency
for the period from 11 January 2021 to 1 August 2021. Nevertheless,
it is stated by the Prime Minister of Malaysia that, despite the
proclamation, economic activities will continue to function. The
Malaysian Government will ensure that economic activities do not
stop so that the people can continue to work and do business while
trades and industries can continue to operate as usual. The effect of

the proclamation is yet to be seen.

With the launching of MyDIGITAL national campaign, the Prime
Minister of Malaysia also announced in February 2021 that
development efforts on the building of digital infrastructure will be
jointly undertaken by the Malaysian Government and the private
sector. The Malaysian Government will invest RM15 billion within a
period of 10 years for the implementation of 5G in Malaysia. He also
targets to migrate 80% of the public data to hybrid cloud systems by
the end of 2022. Therefore, we plan to invest in networking products,

cloud storage platform technology, artificial intelligence and big data.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

OUTLOOK

In view of the on-going impacts on the Malaysian economy caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic, the nationwide MCO and the Proclamation
of Emergency in Malaysia, the business environment will continue
to remain challenging for the Group. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to actively pursue the following business strategies: (i) to
be a major IT solution provider to the development of digitalisation
in Malaysia; (ii) to capture new growth opportunities through our
successful product, Square Intelligence; (iii) leveraging on the
business networks of the Pre-IPO Investors to introduce IT products
in the PRC into Malaysia; and diversifying our service offerings to our

customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, bankers, customers and business partners for
their support and trust placed on us. | would also like to thank our
staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. With our competent
management and professional teams, | believe the Group will
succeed in achieving our business goals.

Yours sincerely,

Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 February 2021

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

RE

ZERCOVID-19%1E - BRATZHITHEH <
RAESMESS)EBRATNEELERFE
REBMEERBBEETRLE - Af - A&
B G EBEBREIT AT EB R - ()R RERA
DHBCBRR 2 EEEARERRT REERS
(i) 3B B P A0 A D £ fh Square Intelligence 3
NBEFIEREE (i) REBXARBESAR
BEEBREETEEMBHREMS| EBRA
5o WREFREZ TR -

B

AANEREZEFERARMABR - RIT - FPEX
BEHE T 2 X REEBUARDREN © RATR
ZFHHRMET 2B A RERMRTHE - NAM
5 BEEBRZEEEREXEN  AEEES
EREEBRR

ZER

EH

FEFTHAAZ
B —E-_—F-A=+HAH



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an IT service provider based in Malaysia and principally
engaged in the design, procurement, installation and maintenance
of customised systems application for corporate customers. Our
services mainly include (i) system integration and development
services, (ii) IT outsourcing services and (iii) maintenance and

consultancy services.

The successful listing of the Company’s shares (the “Shares”) on
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 22 October 2018 was an important
milestone for the Group, enhancing our capital strength and

reinforcing the Group’s resources for future development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was derived from three principal sources,
namely, system integration and development services, IT outsourcing
services and maintenance and consultancy services which are

analysed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 November 2020, the Group recorded a
decrease in total revenue by approximately 48.5% to approximately
RM10.0 million (2019: approximately RM19.4 million). The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to significant decrease in revenue from the

system integration and development services.

Details of changes in the revenue derived from system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services, and maintenances and

consultancy services are analysed as below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

System integration and development services

For system integration and development services, the revenue
decreased by approximately 54.7% from approximately RM17.9
million for the year ended 30 November 2019 to approximately
RM8.1 million for the year ended 30 November 2020.

The significant decrease in revenue was mainly due to (i) the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 and the implementation of the
MCO by the Malaysian Government effective from 18 March 2020
which have seriously hindered the seeking out of potential customers
and negotiation and securing of new projects, and caused the
delay of completion of existing projects as customers slowed down
the project progress; and (ii) the completion of several substantial

projects as well as the intense competition in securing new projects.
IT outsourcing services

For IT outsourcing services, the revenue increased by approximately
40.9% from approximately RM0.8 million for the year ended 30
November 2019 to approximately RM1.1 million for the year ended 30
November 2020. The increase in revenue was mainly due to increase

in outsourcing service time rendered.
Maintenance and consultancy services

For maintenance and consultancy services, the revenue remained
stable at approximately RMO0.8 million for the years ended 30
November 2020 and 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmRDN

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth a breakdown of gross profit and gross

profit margin for the years indicated:

EARENR
TREFIMREEENRENEZ2HA :

Year ended 30 November

BE+—A=tHLFE

2019

—E-NF

RM’000 RM’000

BT Yok ol

Revenue & 10,011 19,428
Cost of services and materials sold PR 7% K B & ML AR (8,524) (13,556)
Gross profit EH 1,487 5,872
Gross profit margin FE 7= 14.9% 30.2%

The gross profit decreased by approximately 74.7%, from
approximately RM5.9 million for the year ended 30 November 2019 to
approximately RM1.5 million for the year ended 30 November 2020.

The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 30.2% for the
year ended 30 November 2019 to approximately 14.9% for the year
ended 30 November 2020. The decrease was due to completion of
several substantial projects of system integration and development
services and additional costs incurred from the delay of project
progress caused by COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 30
November 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 114.7% from
approximately RM4.6 million for the year ended 30 November 2019 to
approximately RM9.8 million for the year ended 30 November 2020.
The increase was due to the combined effect of (i) the increase in
staff costs since significant portion of staff costs for IT staff previously
allocated to “cost of services” and “development costs of intangible
assets” were included in administrative expenses during the year
ended 30 November 2020 as most of the substantial projects
were completed and they were re-allocated to focus on tendering
new projects, and staff costs for directors and administrative staff
increased generally after listing; and (ii) the increase in amortisation
of intangible assets.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The Group assessed the measurement of expected credit losses
for trade receivables using a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For the year
ended 30 November 2020, impairment losses on trade receivables
of approximately RM761,000 (2019: approximately RM238,000) was
recognised. Due to the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
most business activities and the payment chain in Malaysia was
significantly affected which caused the extension of debt collection
periods and increase in loss allowance on trade receivables.

At the date of this annual report, approximately 42% of the trade
receivables at 30 November 2020 have been settled. The Group
believed that the impairment losses recognised had reflected the
Group’s exposure to credit risk.

Impairment loss on non-current assets

In view of the deteriorating economy and significant disruption in the
operations of the Group arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and
the MCO in Malaysia throughout the year ended 30 November 2020,
the Group assessed if any impairment loss should be recognised for
the non-current assets of the Group including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

The Group considered that certain technologies developed in
previous years may not easily to meet customers’ increasing
expectations and requirements for their IT needs in the future
market developments, in particular, after the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. Therefore, impairment loss of approximately RM2.2 million
(2019: nil) was recognised for these technologies during the year
ended 30 November 2020.

At 30 November 2020, the Group further assessed the recoverable
amounts of the remaining intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets based on a 3-year period value-in-
use calculation and considered that no further impairment loss should
be recognised at 30 November 2020.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by approximately 27.7% from
approximately RM65,000 for the year ended 30 November 2019 to
approximately RM83,000 for the year ended 30 November 2020.
The increase was primarily due to increase in the number of motor

vehicles leased under finance leases.
Income tax expenses

As the Group recorded a loss for the year ended 30 November
2020, no provision for income tax has been made (2019: income tax

expenses of approximately RM71,000).
(Loss) Profit for the year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately RM11.2 million for
the year ended 30 November 2020, as compared to a profit of
approximately RM1.3 million for the year ended 30 November 2019.
The loss was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue and
gross profit, and increase in administrative expenses, impairment
loss on trade receivables and impairment loss on intangible assets as

analysed above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

RESPONSE TO OUTBREAK OF COVID-19
PANDEMIC

Since early 2020, COVID-19 pandemic spread worldwide. A series
of precautionary and control measures have been undertaken by

governments around the world, including Hong Kong and Malaysia.

The Malaysian Government announced the implementation of
MCO effective from 18 March 2020. On 4 May 2020, the Malaysian
Government had eased lockdown restrictions and announced the
Conditional Movement Control Order, which allowed certain business
sectors to resume operations. On 10 June 2020, the Malaysian
Government implemented the Recovery Movement Control Order
(“RMCO”). Under RMCO, most of the economic sectors were
allowed to resume operations in stages, while in full compliance with
Standard Operating Procedures (“SOP”). However, the situation of
COVID-19 pandemic in Malaysia worsened again in early 2021 and
the Government of Malaysia implemented the MCO again on 11
January 2021 and extended the MCO until 4 March 2021. Further, the
head of state of Malaysia has issued a Proclamation of Emergency for
the period from 11 January 2021 to 1 August 2021. The effect of the
proclamation is yet to be seen.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

During the year of 2020, the Group has experienced significant
disruption in its operations arising from the COVID-19 pandemic
and the MCO in Malaysia, including but not limited to (i) temporary
closure of offices where most of the staff has worked from home since
March 2020, (ii) interruption of operations where SOP was required
to be implemented, (iii) only 50% attendance were maintained by all
customers’ office and closure of the headquarters of all banks. Our
customers slowed down the progress of their projects to complete
certain deployment during the MCO and therefore various projects
have been delayed for almost 10 months. Further, all meetings were
limited to online meetings which seriously hindered the securing of
new business. These caused the drop in revenue by 50-60% and the

additional cost incurred for the year ended 30 November 2020.

To cope with the ongoing situation of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has, in a timely manner, put in place numerous precautionary
measures and procured essential protective supplies to ensure the
health and safety of all its employees in different regions. At the
same time, the Group has implemented various flexible working
arrangements for its staff. The Group has used, and will continue
to use, its best endeavors to mitigate the adverse impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Group.

The Group is closely monitoring the development of the COVID-19
pandemic to ensure the safety of employees and stable operations.
As and when appropriate, the Group will adjust its measures
and plans for pandemic prevention, operations and business

development accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At 30 November 2020, the total borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately RM1.8 million which comprised interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities (2019: approximately RM1.7 million
which comprised interest-bearing borrowings and obligations under
finance leases). Details on the effective interest rate and maturity
profile of the Group’s total borrowings are set out in Notes 13, 21 and

22 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 30 November 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was 8.2% (2019:
5.1%). Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings divided

by total equity at the end of the financial year.

At 30 November 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately RM16.8 million (2019: approximately RM27.3 million).
The current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.7 times (2019:
approximately 4.1 times). Current ratio is calculated based on total
current assets divided by total current liabilities at the end of the

financial year.

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue
generated from its business operation, available bank balances and
cash as well as interest-bearing borrowings. The Board will continue
to follow a prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and
cash and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure
that the Group is well positioned to achieve its business objectives

and strategies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 November 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2019: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 November 2020, the Group did not have significant capital

commitments contracted but not provided for (2019: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

At 30 November 2020, the Group did not have any significant

investments (2019: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30 November 2020, the Group had obtained banking facilities
on issuance of bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy
banks, which were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances of
approximately RM309,000 (2019: approximately RM708,000) as set

out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 30 November 2020, the interest-bearing borrowings were secured
by properties owned by the Group with aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately RM1.2 million (2019: approximately
RM1.3 million) as set out in Note 21(i) to the consolidated financial

statements.

FUTURE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Following the Listing, the Group consistently and actively pursues the
following business strategies: (i) to be a major IT solution provider
to the development of digitalisation in Malaysia; (ii) to capture
new growth opportunities through our successful product, Square
Intelligence; (iii) leveraging on the business networks of the pre-IPO
investors of the Company to introduce IT products in the PRC into

Malaysia, and diversifying our service offerings to our customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

Details of the Group’s future business and development plans are set

out below:

(i) To be a major IT solution provider to the development of
digitalisation in Malaysia

Since the Listing, the Group has already recruited 12
additional IT specialists and outsourced partial development
and upgrading works to technology vendors in providing IT
solutions in Digital Free Trade Zone in Malaysia. However,
the Digital Free Trade Zone has been affected by change
of government and scrapped by the new government. On
19 February 2021, the Malaysian Government has unveiled
the country’s Digital Economy Blueprint in a bid to catch up
in the digitalisation race and introduced 10-year road map
which aims to transform Malaysia into a digital-driven, high
income nation and a regional leader in the digital economy.
Development efforts on the building of digital infrastructure
will be jointly undertaken by the Malaysian Government and
the private sector. The Malaysian Government will invest RM15
billion within a period of 10 years for the implementation of 5G
in Malaysia. The Malaysian Government also targets to migrate
80% of the public data to hybrid cloud systems by the end of
2022. The Group is preparing to bid for tender opportunity to be
revealed by the Malaysian government and conducting studies
on potential new products which can capture the business

opportunities resulting from the said government initiatives.

Besides, the Group is still in the process of developing and
rolling out the advanced version of our mobile payment
application (i.e. Blackbutton) in order to localize the mobile
payment product into Malaysia and integrating the payment

operator with the banking infrastructure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmRDN

Affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and its
economic impact on the global market, it is expected that
it gives rise to an uncertain economic environment to the
Malaysian market. In the coming years, the business in the
information technology industry in Malaysia is expected to
remain challenging and competitive. Looking forward, the
Group will remain cautious and continue to pay close attention
and focus on providing IT solutions by integrating the existing

resources and optimising the business performance.

The Group is also currently evaluating the potential acquisitions
or development of 4 new major intellectual properties to
increase the product features and enhance the compatibility
of Square Intelligence (i.e. NS3) and the customer relationship

management system (i.e. CUSTPRO).

These functions include scalable mobility technology, statistical
modeling of business performance, APl technology, as well as
building a digital banking feature on top of NS3 and CUSTPRO.

In order to enable the Group to secure contracts from
government authorities and agencies, the Group is accelerating
its pace in the acquisition of service providers that possess
government’s service provider license (Taraf Bumiputra
MOF) in early 2021. Only companies possessing this license
can provide services, goods and sales to the governmental

authorities and agencies.

With reference to the use of the proceeds, the Group still
considers that the development of the cloud services and the
provision of services is feasible and prosperous in the long
run because the target customers of cloud services can be
diverse, including but not limited to customers in the secrecy

information sector or e-commerce sector etc..
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

(i)

To capture new growth opportunities through our
successful product, Square Intelligence

Our Product, Square Intelligence (i.e. NS3), has been
successful since its introduction to the Malaysian market.
The Group has successfully secured a contract from Bursa
Malaysia, the stock exchange of Malaysia, pursuant to which
Bursa Malaysia agreed to use our products as a foundation to

develop CDS e-Services solution platform.

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 around
the world has certain impacts on the business operation and
overall global economy. Due to suspension of operation in
Malaysia and global travel restriction, it directly and indirectly
affects the seeking out of potential customers and negotiation
and securing of new projects of the Group. However, the
management will actively formulate more alternative business
plans and perform a series of sales and marketing efforts in
order to expand its existing market share. The Board expects
that the expansion of our products will continuously generate
a sustainable cash inflow to the Group through the aforesaid

measures and means.

The Group is also currently evaluating new data science
API plug-in to the Square Intelligence to enrich the business
dashboard reporting with natural language processing (NLP)

and text mining capabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

(iii)

Leveraging on the business networks of the Pre-IPO
Investors to introduce IT products in the PRC into Malaysia;
and diversifying our service offerings to our customers

Various in-roads have been made to discuss with potential PRC
partners regarding their interests in launching their services/
products in Malaysia. However, with the change in Malaysian
Government in May 2018, these potential partners decided
to take a wait-and-see approach on their expansion plan.
These potential partners are concerned about the likelihood
of changes in government policy towards foreign investors,
especially from the PRC. The discussions were resumed in late
2019 as the Malaysian Government settled in and showed their

openness to PRC investors.

In early 2020, we also negotiated for a potential cooperation
project on co-working space with an operator in Hong Kong
with an aim to further cooperate on data centre and cloud
services in both Hong Kong and Malaysia and a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) has
been entered into in January 2020. However, the possible
cooperation project has been interrupted due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic and the change of the Malaysian
Government in February 2020. Despite further negotiation and
discussion, no legally binding agreement has been entered into
and the MOU has lapsed and ceased to have any effect. Details
of the MOU and lapse of MOU are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 24 January 2020 and 26 May 2020.

The Group will continue our discussion and negotiation with
potential partner, and actively explore valuable IT products for
the purpose of diversifying our products and services offering

to our customers.

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

As at the date of this annual report, the Board confirms that there
are no substantial changes in the Group’s future business and
development plans as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 29 September 2018 (the “Prospectus”). All plans on technology
enhancement, acquisition of intellectual property, as well as
investment in research and development are to further enhance
the competitive edge of our technical competence. Nevertheless,
due to the sudden change of the Malaysian Government and the
ongoing impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the Board considers that
it is necessary to further prudently evaluate the situation while the
overall direction of the Group’s principal business remained the same
in all material respects since the Listing. Further announcement will
be made should there be any material change on the Group’s future

business and development plans.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated

companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified various principal risk factors and uncertainties

that may affect our operating results and business prospects,

including but not limited to the following:

Risk factors and uncertainties
BEBREZERTEERR

Most of the contracts are project-based which create

uncertainty and sustainability of our future revenue steams

REBDEKIATRE RER - B3PI R EE TR R AT 13K
TEARARE =

Dependent on major customers for a significant portion of
our business and any decrease in revenue generated from
major customers could materially and adversely affect our

business, results of operations and financial condition

BREEZPUAESERIMONES X BEPEL 2K
DB T - CEEERIEREREATFZE

Cost overruns or delays in our system integration and
development projects may materially and adversely affect

our business, financial position and results of operation
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Risk Response
R [E e

To secure new contracts, the Group continuously
enhances its product and services offerings, introduces
various marketing and promotional activities, and
provides customised solutions to the customers.

REGHEH  AREBTEMRERMNRBAES  HHSE
SHFERERS  WARFREERICHRRAR -

The Group maintains good and long-term relationships
with the existing customers. At the same time, the Group
introduces various marketing and promotional activities
to attract potential customers and to increase market
awareness. The Group is also exploring new markets
by developing cloud services and seeking other
cooperation opportunities with potential partners.
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The COVID-19 pandemic had resulted in the cost overruns
and delays in projects in 2020. Nevertheless, the Group
continues to manage the cost carefully and optimise the
resources utilisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

Risk factors and uncertainties
BABEEZRTEERR

Failure to anticipate and keep pace with our customer’s

business and industry

EOXTAGNE ERPEBRITRE ZARER

Significant delays in collecting trade receivables from our

customers

A% P R 5 e YRR 3R EATERR
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Risk Response
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The Group closely monitors the changes in technologies

and review the customers’ needs to mitigate the risks.
The Group also develops advanced versions of its
existing products and is establishing new products
and services (e.g. cloud storage and cloud computing
services) from time to time to meet the customers’

demands.

AEEZIERMBEHNBECLRBEEPHFTNR - UEER

@ o NSRBI NG R A A PSR R B BTV E
mAMRS (MEHFFERBHEZRS)  UHEEFH

=Ko

The Group trades with recognised and creditworthy

customers and generally does not provide a long
credit period to new customers unless they are sizable
enterprises with good reputation. The trade receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis by the
management. To collect overdue trade receivables,
the Group closely monitors overdue payments and
performs credit search on our customers to ensure their

recoverability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

For a more comprehensive list of risk factors, please also refer to
the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus which are still

applicable to the Group.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group

are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of the business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
management monitors our foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised by the Company from the placing and public
offer of the Company were approximately RM30.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$58.6 million) (based on the final Offer Price (as
defined in the Prospectus) of HK$0.62 per offer share adjusted by the
Downward Offer Price Adjustment (as defined in the Prospectus)). The
Company intends to apply the net proceeds on a pro-rata basis for
the purposes as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus and the price

reduction announcement dated 16 October 2018, which are as follows:

—  approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, for strengthening our technical team by recruiting

more IT specialists

—  approximately RM18.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$35.2 million), representing approximately 60% of the
net proceeds, for purchase of hardware and equipment for
establishment of IT infrastructure for the provision of cloud

storage and cloud computing services

— approximately RM6.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.7 million), representing approximately 20% of the net
proceeds, for research and development of advanced and

adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

—  approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately =
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net

proceeds, as general working capital

As at the date of this annual report, there were no significant changes
of the business plans from those disclosed in the Prospectus.
However, the Board is in the process of evaluating the business plans

taking into account the uncertainties on the duration and impacts of

the COVID-19 pandemic.

The table below sets out the proposed applications of the net

proceeds up to 30 November 2020:

—REEES

HEXRNFRAHY -

COVID-19%& [E 354
FHEE RS S -

TREIEE—
FRRMEZEA R

L) (EFER

EEi=pi

#9 55 ¥ 3,050,000 7t (48 & 7 495,860,000
T HFEN10% ) B RIES

SRFRE LB
HEBEEARD o AT LEIE
EHRRYE

EHEE
EEgrA

Z_ZFE+—HA=1+BHREHRA

Total
unutilised use
of proceeds
Planned use Actual use from the
of proceeds of proceeds Listing Date
up to up to to
30 November 30 November 30 November
2020 2020 2020
Bz Bz tHwEHE
b S 33 —ZoER TECEF
+—-B=tH T—-HA=tH T=/HZr(E
PG TRIERY FRGRIER HARER
B ke BERRE  AEMEAR
RM million RM million RM million
EHEET EHEET GREET
Strengthening our technical team by recruiting BEE % AR E A PN 5 i B
more IT specialists 3.05 3.05 =
Purchase of hardware and equipment for BEBMH RSB SRR AR
establishment of IT infrastructure for the provision & HARESREER
of cloud storage and cloud computing services TiniBE MR 18.30 1.02 17.28
Research and development of advanced and HEASEREEANRHRER ZERR R
adapted versions of our Group’s existing TERR
IT products 6.10 6.10 -
General working capital —REEES 3.05 3.05 -
Total @5t 30.50 13.22 17.28
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

Expected completion timeline for utilising the remaining net

proceeds

For the unutilised net proceeds up to 30 November 2020, the

Company intends to utilise them in the manner as described below.

The expected completion timeline for utilising the remaining unused

net proceeds is set out below:

Uses of proceeds

FrEsERR

Purchase of hardware and equipment for
establishment of IT infrastructure for
the provision of cloud storage and
cloud computing services

BERM R B R &R ER R
miHtEnET R EREE R

Notes:

Details of uses of proceeds

FremE AR

Establish a data centre in
Cyberjaya with a total
storage capacity of approximately
75 million MB

RERAREREY —EHESL -
18#7F 2 4)/75,000,000 MB

(1) The expected timeline for utilising the remaining unused proceeds is

based on the best estimation of the present and future market conditions

in Malaysia as assessed by the Board.

(2) Reference is made to announcement of the Company dated 29 April

2020. The expected time for utilising the remaining unused net proceeds

was previously extended to 31 May 2021. In view of the uncertainties

on the duration and impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group

estimated that the expected time for utilising the remaining unused net

proceeds will be further extended for one year from 31 May 2021 to 31

May 2022.

utilising the
net proceeds as set
out in the Prospectus

From 1 June 2019 to

BASKTAEREFENAY TR ERR

RBE_ZB_TFE+—A=THORERRER
RS ARRBRBATR T ABRE
BATRIA o BYAER N ARG TS SR F R A TR AR Y
RIZRESIT

Original plans for

Expected timeline for utilising
the remaining unused

net proceeds (Note 1)

RRERMBBARE BRBT RERMEHEFEN
REFENREE BHEER(M21)

From 1 December 2019

31 May 2020 to 31 May 2022 (Note 2)

A=ZE-NEAA—H BZZ-NF+=-R—H
E-Z-TF E-E-CF
IA=1+—H TA=+—HBH#2)
Hiaz -

(1) BB TAEMAEENEBBMEHER
EEEYE KA B A BRI ROR T
BfEfbE -

(2) RURBRAARAFABHA-ZT-_THENA-Th
HzRE  ERABRTARBASRIEFENES
KEAECEE-_T-_—FHA=1+—"H0 - ZER
FOEEECOVID-19R B RHFERERTE - &
ELMEE - BARTRAFEANMERIEFEE
ZHEEREH-—_E-—FRA=+—HBL
B—EEx_T_—&FHA=+—H-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

The delay in utilisation of the net proceeds are mainly due to the

following reasons:
(i) The sudden change of the Malaysian Government

The Board has observed that the new Malaysian Government
formed in May 2018 had put a pause on many major
infrastructure projects implemented by the previous
government during its handover. The Board was of the view
that the progress of the implementation of the infrastructure
projects, to a large extent, depends on the decision of the
new Malaysian Government. Furthermore, following the
handover of the Malaysian Government, there were various
changes in the leadership of the Malaysian Government and
the policies affecting the industry where the Group belongs.
These various policy changes included the reforms of the
Malaysian tax (e.g. replacing the Goods and Services Tax with
the Sales and Services Tax) and the changes of the existing
benefits (e.g. tax incentives) of the status of Malaysian Digital
Economy Corporation (MDEC). The impacts of those policies
on the Group started to appear in mid-2019. At that time,
under those policies, many IT projects and cooperations with
potential customers of the Group had been put on hold or the
customers of the Group decided to delay their investments
in technology as they considered the policy changes were
unfavorable to them. This had inevitably caused the Board to
postpone its decision on the utilisation of the net proceeds until
a more favourable market condition emerges. The Board was
also alert to the potential impact on the sudden change of the
Malaysian Government in February 2020, causing even more
uncertainties. The Group continuously and regularly monitors
any changes in government policies in relation to IT industry
which may seriously affect the establishment of IT infrastructure
for the provision of cloud storage and cloud computing
services. The Group also evaluated its decisions and strategies
on the size, extent and timing of the infrastructure of the cloud
storage and cloud computing services to be built by the Group.
After several internal discussions, it was decided to take a more
conservative and prudent approach and minimise the utilisation
of the net proceeds at the material time. Accordingly, it caused

a delay in the utilisation of the net proceeds.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmRDN

(i) The unexpected postponement of alignment of its software
systems

Due to the incompatibility among some of the existing hardware
and software, the IT specialists and the technicians of the
Group had to review the alignment of its software systems
with the configurations of hardware equipment and perform
further testing which had caused the unexpected delay before
undertaking an upgrade to its hardware equipment for the
provision of cloud storage and cloud computing services.
Moreover, the progress was affected by the COVID-19
pandemic. Accordingly, it caused a further delay in the

utilisation of the net proceeds.

(iii) Adverse effect of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
the implementation of MCO in Malaysia

During the year of 2020, the Group has experienced significant
disruption in its operations arising from the COVID-19
pandemic and the MCO in Malaysia, including but not limited
to temporary closure of offices and interruption of operations
where SOP was required to be implemented. It caused a delay

in the utilisation of the net proceeds.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 November 2020, the Group had a total of 61 employees
(2019: 63) in Hong Kong and Malaysia. For the year ended 30
November 2020, total staff costs and related expenses of the Group
(including the Directors’ remuneration) were approximately RM7.7
million (2019: approximately RM8.0 million).

Employees’ remuneration is determined with reference to market
terms and the performance, qualifications and experience of
employees. Apart from the statutory retirement benefits and medical
benefits, the Group also provides trainings to employees to enhance

their knowledge and maintain the quality of our services.

(i) ERBRFEZREHEER ZIINER

HRE D RAE R ZEETES
HMASENEAREES REMAERE
ERENGRAREEGRELEE BN
WA - WEH#E— R - SHRARIRE
HEGFEREHEERBOEFLE
ERBERZIIKTE - BF  BEER
COVID-19Z BRI & » BEE—F LR
B A S FIEFE

(iii) COVID-19&ERBEERATERTH
EHS TR
MRZZ_ZTF - AEEECOVID-19%& 1
RERALEBITHESNS @ UAREER
HERTE  BEETRAGRBMARE
ERARNTEELERFELEREF
B o S5 BEAFTIS I LR IERR o

BERFHMBR

RZZT=ZTF+—A=1+RH AEEEFEEES
REGEAEH1BEE(ZZT—NF :638) °
HE—Z-_TF+—A=THILLEFE  K£EZ
BETIKARHEBRZ(BREEEFEWNNAS
#7,700,0007C (= Z— N4 : #955%8,000,000
TT) °
EEFME2EMSKRAREE 2KRE - ERR
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B A B TIRMEEI - DR A2 A3 R 4R
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TEEENWE DN

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group joins a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) Scheme in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group is required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those

of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia also operate Employees
Provident Fund for their employees in accordance with the statutory
requirements prescribed by the relevant Malaysian laws and
regulations. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
(6%—13%) of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

For the year ended 30 November 2020, the total amount contributed
by the Group to the schemes was approximately RM602,000 (2019:
approximately RM570,000).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[BN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (“Mr. Chong”), aged 40, the founder of the
Group, was appointed as the chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and executive Director of the Company on 27 February
2018. He is mainly responsible for formulating the overall business
development strategy and planning; overseeing the Group’s
performance and management; and leading and representing the

Group in negotiation with potential business partners.

Mr. Chong is experienced in the field of system integration and
development as a software engineer. From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Chong
worked in iPower Berhad, a company engaged in system integration
based in Malaysia. From March 2017 to December 2020, Mr. Chong
was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd., a company engaged in
the provision of online home design solutions. In the past 11 years,
Mr. Chong has been working relentlessly to build up the Group.
In particular, he has participated in the development of NS3 and
CUSTPRO, the two self-developed IT products of the Group.

Mr. Chong obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Information Technology
majoring in software engineering with honours from Multimedia
University in Malaysia in May 2003. Subsequently, he completed
three IBM professional certification programs, which are IBM Certified
Specialist DB2 and IBM Certified Database Administrator respectively
in 2004 and IBM Certified System Administrator — Websphere
Application Server Network Deployment in 2006.

HITES

BEHBAE(ERLE] 4058 /SAKEZA
WA WR=ZFB—N\F_A=-F++tRAEZERA
RAEEEEIFE TREHRATES - FEE
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ZEREAREEBARTARRERARERBERS
BHAEITRERS ©
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R—HEUNSRATAEMRERRES Z2A
iPower Berhad e R=ZE—+FE=AZ&Z T - F
F+—HF  @&%4BC.1.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (“Mr. Liu”), aged 50, was appointed as
an executive Director on 8 March 2018. He is also currently the

compliance officer and an authorised representative of the Company.

Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in finance and accounting.
He is currently and has been an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
0899) since April 2017 and August 2018 respectively. He is also
currently and has been an executive director of Future Bright Mining
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2212) since August 2019. He was
the chief executive officer of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited
from 26 October 2018 to 16 June 2020. He was an independent
non-executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8217) from March
2016 to December 2017. He was the sales director and licensed
representative of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers) Limited during the
period between September 2010 and October 2015, and KGI Asia
Limited and KGI Futures (Hong Kong) Limited during the period
between October 2004 to September 2010.

Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Commerce from Dalhousie

University in Canada in February 1994.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[BN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (“Mr. Siah”), aged 41, was appointed as a

non-executive Director on 27 February 2018.

In 2005, he founded CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd., which focuses on, among
others, business intelligence and data warehousing, for enabling a
business to gather and analyse its data regarding specific function
areas such as finance, supply chain, human resources, sales and
marketing and customer service to provide historical, current and
predictive views of business operations and has been the chief
operating officer and a director thereof until his resignation in
February 2018. He was responsible for the operations and research
and development of CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd.. From March 2017 to
December 2020, Mr. Siah was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn.
Bhd., a company engaged in the provision of online home design
solutions. Mr. Siah is experienced in the implementation of business

intelligence, data warehousing and banking solutions.

Currently, Mr. Siah is a director of Rivermains Technology Sdn. Bhd.,

a company engaged in the provision of online car insurance.

Mr. Siah obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Engineering (Mechanical)
with honours from University of Malaya in September 2002.
Subsequently, he received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service
Management in February 2005 and an ITIL Manager’s Certificate in IT

Service Management in September 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lam Pang (“Mr. Lam”), aged 51, was appointed as a non-

executive Director on 8 March 2018.

Mr. Lam has around 30 years of extensive experience in trading
between the PRC and Hong Kong, and property investment in the
PRC. He founded Stars (Holdings) Limited (now known as Stars
Pacific Limited), of which he has been the director and has been
engaged in trading business since 1992. He was the chairman of
GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (now known as GOME
Retail Holdings Limited), a listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0493) from December 2000 to April
2002 and an executive director from September 2000 to May 2007.
Afterwards, Mr. Lam was an executive director of LR & ZE& EEH
BBR2AA (Shandong Jintai Group Co., Ltd), a listed company on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600385) from July 2007 to
June 2013, and a director of Blossombhill Investment Limited (formerly
known as Special Fine Investment and Management Limited) from
December 2013 to October 2015. From 2015 to October 2019, Mr.
Lam was the general manager of #fE EERZZFHEAR A (Hunan
Fu Heng Construction Development Co., Ltd.), which is principally
engaged in infrastructure and property development.

go

Mr. Lam currently serves as the consultant of &I EHLATE
(Shenzhen Association of Chinese Traditional Culture Studies), #
BB B & ERMA ERESHEHRERZTEZE€ (Health Science and
Technology Work Committee of China Association for Promoting
International Economic & Technical Cooperation) and & &g

(China pre-Qin History Society).

Mr. Lam graduated from Pui Ying Secondary School in late 1980s.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[BN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan San Ping (“Mr. Chan”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit

committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Chan was the partner of GrammyTech Limited from September
2003 to April 2013, and is the managing partner of EMP Partners
since May 2013. During the said periods, he has been responsible for
the management of the business for banking and finance recruitment
in Hong Kong and China. From July 1997 to September 2003, Mr.
Chan was the managing partner of Grammy Financial Institutions
Group Limited, and his main responsibility covered the management
of the senior level recruitment business for financial services industry
in Hong Kong and North Asia. These past and present positions have
given Mr. Chan around 25 years of experiences in recruitment of

talents in the finance industry.

Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Arts with honours, majoring

in business studies from City University of Hong Kong in 1988.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Su Chi Wen (“Mr. Su”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He
is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the

remuneration committee and audit committee.

Mr. Su has over 20 years of experience working in the IT industry. Mr.
Su has been the deputy IT director of C&C Joint Printing Co., (H.K.)
Ltd since January 2014 and was the project manager of C&C Joint
K.) Ltd from May 2005 to December 2013. Prior to
that, Mr. Su was the executive director of High-Growth (H.K.) Limited
from July 1997 to June 2000. From July 1995 to March 1997, Mr. Su

was the system consultant of System Management Consultancy Ltd.

Printing Co., (H.

Mr. Su was the founder of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys Solutions
Holdings Limited (now known as Enviro Energy International Holdings
Limited), a company formerly listed on GEM (Stock Code: 8182) since
February 2003 and subsequently transferred its listing from GEM
to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1102) since
December 2010. From July 2000 to May 2004, he was the executive
director and chief executive officer of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys

Solutions Holdings Limited.

Mr. Su obtained a Bachelor's degree of Commerce, majoring in
marketing from Dalhousie University in Canada in 1995. He was
awarded a certificate of digital asset management by the Advanced
Printing Technology Centre (APTEC), a subsidiary of the Hong
Kong Printers Association in 2005. In 2014, Mr. Su received an
executive diploma in digital marketing from Hong Kong Management
Association and a certificate from China Business Executives

Academy Dalian.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (“Ms. Ho”), aged 49, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018.
She is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the

remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Ho has been the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
2882) since May 2017 and March 2018 respectively. From September
2007 to February 2017, Ms. Ho served as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Paradise Entertainment Limited (Stock
Code: 1180). Prior to that, she was the financial controller and
company secretary of Linefan Technology Holdings Limited (now
known as China Eco-Farming Limited) (Stock Code: 8166) from May
2004 to September 2007. She was the financial manager of Recruit
Holdings Limited (now known as KK Culture Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 550) from November 2002 to August 2003 and the accounting
manager of Systek Information Technology Limited (now known as the
Dadi International Group Limited) (Stock Code: 8130) from October
2001 to November 2002. These past and present positions have
given Ms. Ho over 20 years of financial and accounting experience
and extensive experience of working in the listed companies in Hong

Kong.

Ms. Ho obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy with honours
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994. She was admitted as
a member of both The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in May
1998 and May 2000 respectively.
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ESERGEREEE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pang Hen Yong (“Mr. Pang”), aged 41, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2012 and is
responsible for all aspects of strategic IT planning, implementation,
and support as an integral component of the business plan. He is also
responsible for budgeting, design and support of all technological

issues of the Group.

Mr. Pang worked as the technical consultant for DKSH Holding AG,
also known as DiethelmKellerSiberHegner, a company listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange (Stock Code: DKSH) from March 2007 to July
2011. From July 2011 to December 2012, he worked as the technical
consultant for GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company listed on both the
London Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GSK) and the New York Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: GSK).

Mr. Pang obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Information Technology
with honours from Universiti Tenaga Nasional in August 2003. He
received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in
October 2012.

Mr. Chung Foo Shyn (“Mr. Chung”), aged 40, was the project
director of the Group since September 2013 and was responsible
for overseeing project implementation and project management. Mr.
Chung had tendered his resignation with effect from 31 December
2020.

Mr. Chung was the project manager for Techbase Solution Sdn.
Bhd. from August 2012 to August 2013. He worked as the senior
IT specialist for iFAST Service Centre Sdn. Bhd. from May 2008 to
July 2011 and the senior java developer for Optegra Sdn. Bhd. from
November 2005 to May 2008.

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor's degree of Computer Science,
majoring in software engineering, with honours from University of
Malaya in August 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Wong Puh Yih (“Mr. Wong”), aged 38, is the head of research
and development department of the Group. He was appointed as a
member of the technical team of the Group on April 2014. His main
responsibility includes: (i) development and design of product from
concept to specifications and implementation and (ii) coordination
with internal or external engineering teams on the new process and

equipment design, scale-up, capability improvement and validation.

Mr. Wong obtained an Associate Degree in Information Technology
from New Era College in 2006. He is certified as a Sun Certified
Programmer for the Java Platform in 2010. In 2014, he completed
two IBM professional certification programs, namely IBM Certified
Database Administrator and IBM Certified Database Associate in
2014.

Ms. Lam Yat Ting (“Ms. Lam”), aged 38, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Group on 8 March 2018.

Ms. Lam has over 10 years of experience in accounting and audit.
She has been the financial controller of Man Lee Management
Limited, a subsidiary of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 899) since May 2018. She was the executive director and
company secretary of Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing
Group Limited (now known as Cornerstone Technologies Holdings
Limited) (Stock Code: 8391) from September 2018 to June 2019.
From October 2016 to April 2018, she worked at New World
Facilities Management Company Limited, a subsidiary of New World
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 17) where her last
position held was a finance manager. Prior to that, she worked at a
medium size C.P.A. firm from March 2008 to October 2016 where her
last position held was an audit manager.

Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Accountancy with honours from City University of Hong Kong in 2006.
She is admitted as a qualified accountant of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants since January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the Company had
complied with the CG Code, except for the derivation as stated

below:
Code Provision A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer

should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping is currently the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and is responsible for
formulating the overall business development strategy and planning
of the Group. In view that Mr. Chong has been responsible for the
overall management of the Group since its inception, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to
have Mr. Chong taking up both roles for effective management
and business development. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority, accountability and independent decision-
making under our present arrangement will not be impaired because
of the diverse background and experience of the other executive
Director, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors. Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access
to the Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

is appropriate in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises
six other experienced and high-calibre individuals including one
other executive Director, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors who would be able to offer
advice from various perspectives. In addition, for major decisions of
the Group, the Company will consult the relevant Board committees
and senior management. Considering the present size and the scope
of business of the Group, the Board considers that it is not in the
best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole to
separate the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer,
because the separation would render the decision-making process of
the Company less efficient than the current structure. Therefore, the
Board considers that the present arrangement is beneficial to and in

the interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of
Dealings”), as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, each
of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the
Standard of Dealings from the date on which the shares of the
Company are first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”)
and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-

executive Directors as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella
Mr. Su Chi Wen

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board is primarily responsible for the overall
business plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation
of the Group’s policies and strategies, monitoring of the business
performance, internal controls and risk management as well as

supervision of the management of the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and
operation of the Group to the management. The delegated functions
are reviewed by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the

needs of the Group.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT
OF DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the board or as an addition to the
existing board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the

Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include any Director
who wishes to retire and not offer himself/herself for re-election.
Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among

themselves) be determined by lot.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for

the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the board

diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed term.
Pursuant to the letters of appointment between the Company and
the non-executive Directors, the non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving three months’
written notice. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by

rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non- executive directors, with at least one of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the code provision C.3 of CG Code as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella,
Mr. Chan San Ping and Mr. Su Chi Wen. Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella is the

chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
has reviewed with the management the accounting standards and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussing auditing, internal
control, risk management and financial reporting matters including
the review of quarterly results, interim results and annual results and

financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2020.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1 of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan San Ping, Mr. Su Chi Wen and
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella. Mr. Chan San Ping is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies on such remuneration; (ii)
determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

Nomination Committee

The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5 of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Su Chi Wen, Mr. Chan San Ping and Ms. Ho
Suet Man Stella. Mr. Su Chi Wen is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to, inter alia,
make recommendations to the Board to fill vacancies on the same.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from the Board
members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are
not nominated by the Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for a director include, inter alia,
reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a board member, diversity of the Board, and
such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

FMESS

ARTERTHMERS - A UTFGEM LT
ARt A%+ B AT B R EAT A2 F RIS EB.
FAB TR ITABEGE - FHEAE M=
BUIATEE  BBAET L BB AR
AEBLHEN - RETAEEEHMNERG Y
-

FHEZEG LT EREBE(ETRRY) : ()HE
FEEREREZMBFTMERERE kB
BAEFM TR REL EXERANEFRNES
REEBER  (IBETESRSMEREARH
MBI R(IN2EEFTRBRZER
RE KBRS RIEARRASELEZ FH -

REZES

ARBMERIIRELEZES » WHETGEMLEM
AP %+ A AT 8 EVR T RIZ ST RIS
ASIRAERM AT HBELE - ERZBEH
=RBUIMITES - BIEBBOUEE  RET %
ERASERL LK - B EEEEREERE
BZERF

=

REZBGZIERAR(HTEFB)HMERM LA
ERAESSREERER -

REBBER

ARRAMERBHRAZEEEE  UHFES
ERERAREAN  UHIREZREGEZE - 2%
ZEENARBUIFAEESHERE ZRE
A REAZBENIHERESREAZERN
- RIE2E 2 AZaR(Eh el sEgs
BEER - B - BARRER KA RKEEERE
ZAEE RS BERERAREHHEBETIES
EFgNERE EFeREZTUENREAR
AEBMEBEE 2 EMEAR - R B SAE
HiEREE R ETE T BN -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT &

45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEREABE

BOARD MEETINGS

For a regular board meeting, at least 14 days’ notice will be given
to the Board members. For other board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and board
papers of the regular meeting are sent to all Directors in advance
within reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and
share their views at the meeting. Minutes of all board and committee
meetings are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by
the Directors.

The Articles of the Company contains provisions requiring the
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which such Directors or any of their close associates have
a material interest.

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the attendance of the
Directors at the board meetings, committee meetings and general
meetings are summarised as follows:
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Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella MERL+ 777
Mr. Su Chi Wen BRBSEE 77
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties of the Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of the Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2020, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with international accounting principles and applied
them consistently. A statement by the joint auditors of the Company
about its responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent joint auditors’ report contained in this annual report.
The Directors adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
consolidated financial statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended 30
November 2020, all Directors participated in continuing professional
development regarding their duties and responsibilities as a director
of a listed company which included reading materials and/or
attending training courses.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal
advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Yat Ting is the company secretary of the Company. During the
year, Ms. Lam had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update her skill and knowledge as required under the
GEM Listing Rules. Please refer to the section headed "Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report for the
biographical details of the company secretary of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP
(together “Mazars”) as its joint auditors for the year ended 30
November 2020. The analysis of the joint auditors’ remuneration for
the year ended 30 November 2020 is set out as follow:

RNAMWE

WHEEZ L RARBZRAME - RAFE © #
LT RBGEM MR AR ERZ T PR15
IR R AR AR R AE - B
ARBZRAPMEZBNFE - F2HEFR
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[Mazars|) BEEBEZ=-T-_FTF+—A=+HL
FEEBEREN - BE_T_TF+— A=+
H I F S 2 B B iz S E B o A 5 an T ¢

Fee amount
EASE
RM’000
BSMTT
Mazars Mazars

Audit services ZEURTS 440

Non-audit services IERZE AR

Agreed-upon procedures on M- _EFHREEERS

interim report 2020 BAITHZEEF 52
492
Local auditors in Malaysia (Not Mazars) 5 7R P o8 K A2 A% E A (3EMazars ) 23
Total RET 515
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review
the Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 30 November 2020, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision C.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee reviewed the
internal control review report issued by the external independent
consultant on the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems in respect of the year ended 30 November 2020 and
considered that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed
the effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and concurred with them.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of the Company, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings shall at all time have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, the Company has established

several channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at

www.mindtelltech.com;

(i)  periodic announcements are published on the websites of the

Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s

website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with

the Directors and senior management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

To comply with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company adopted the
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company on 19 September 2018 and it took effect on the
Listing Date. A copy of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website
at www.mindtelltech.com. During the year, there has been no change

in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Mindtell Technology
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the

“Group”) for the year ended 30 November 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance and
consultancy services. Details of its principal subsidiaries as at 30
November 2020 are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 November
2020 and future business development of the Group are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed

in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 November 2020 and
the financial positions of the Company and the Group as at that date
are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on page

80 to 163 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any
distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles of
the Company and the distribution shall achieve continuity, stability

and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
the Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable return on investment
of the investors and the shareholders in order to provide incentive to
them to continue to support the Group in their long-term development,
the financial conditions and business plan of the Group, and the

market sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 30 November 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 164 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
50.0% (2019: 41.7%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

approximately 92.5% (2019: 91.0%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
53.7% (2019: 39.8%) of the Group’s total cost of services and
materials sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the
Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 88.2%
(2019: 65.4%) of the Group’s total cost of services and materials sold

incurred.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more
of the issued Shares of the Company) had any beneficial interest in
any the Group’s major customers or suppliers during the year ended
30 November 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 30 November 2020 are set out in Note

12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
ended 30 November 2020 are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 30
November 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 30 November 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 152 and in

Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 November 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RM16.0 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 November 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer shares on
a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 19 September 2018. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to grant an option to subscribe for shares
of the Company (the “Option”) to eligible persons as defined in the
Share Option Scheme (including, inter alia, directors, employees,
suppliers, customers and consultants of the Group) as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption on 19 September 2018. Since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and up to 30 November 2020, no Option has been
granted by the Company. As of the date of this annual report, the
Company had 39,000,000 shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme (representing 10% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report). An option
may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer. A sum of
HK$1.00 shall be payable on acceptance. Unless determined by the
Directors otherwise, there is no minimum holding period before it can
be exercised. The maximum entitlement of each participant and the
exercise price shall be in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” of the section headed “Statutory and

General Information” of the Prospectus.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or (ii) requires the Company enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the
Company during the year ended 30 November 2020 or subsisted at

the end of the year.

DONATION

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the Group did not make
any charitable donations (2019: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company, after
deduction of underwriting fees and other expenses payable by the
Company in connection with the Listing, were approximately RM30.5
million. Details of the use of proceeds are set out in the section

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 November
2020 and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella
Mr. Su Chi Wen
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DIRECTORS

Biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Pursuant to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every

three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination provisions
therein and in the Articles.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date which may
be terminated by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY, REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is stipulated by
the Directors on the basis of the employees’ individual performance,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and determined by the Board, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
market comparables.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ OR DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company or an entity associated with him/her or a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has
or had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
any time during the year ended 30 November 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about execution of duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty

committed by the Director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance since February 2019, which provides appropriate cover for

the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that save and except for the deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report on the
principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this

annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group has endeavored to comply
with the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness

towards environmental protections among our staff and employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2020, to the best of knowledge
of the Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2020, the Directors are not
aware of any related party transactions which constituted a non-
exempt connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of

the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERFIETBRAEREAATREEE
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, ZEZRG HERORESFZEZR
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE )

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 November 2020, the interests and short positions of RZZEZEF+—A=1H EFREARAEE

the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, THRAERARAR REBEEZE(EXREBE
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated PIES7T1EFE S RS 501 ([ B H R EAEE L)

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and FEXV B2k m - BERG REST - #E(a)
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the ERBEBHFRBEGROIEXVEE7R8D N
“SFO")), which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and NABRERFT 2 R BOKE + (b)) AR FR
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the B AR B E GG FE 35208 BB N ZIEFTIEZ
SFO; or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in Az ERZIORE  3(c)HBIEGEM LM

the register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of I BIZE5.46 E5.67 &AM E RN 7 N B RS A 2 #E
the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock EIABWT ¢

Exchange, were as follows:
Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company: RAEQBRAREERDZRER :

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and shares interested issued share
Name of Director nature of interest (Note 2) capital
EEERZBROHE AR EHITRA
EEnE SORESRME (Ftst2) BB
Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Note 1) Interests of controlled corporation 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
and person acting in concert
EEMSEE (M) REEE R R BT AL
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (Note 1) Interests of controlled corporation 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
and person acting in concert
AR S (Hrat 1) AR —BITBALT
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James Beneficial owner 57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
2Rk % BEHmERA
Mr. Lam Pang Beneficial owner 38,220,000 (L) 9.8%
HRHE 52 A& BEHmERA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:
(continued)

Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) as confirmed by
them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin
Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is deemed to
be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge Limited and
King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and/or any of their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” and “Share Option Scheme” above, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries or associated corporations was a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives
of the Company (including their respective spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any of its associated corporations at any time during the year
ended 30 November 2020.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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AR BB BITIRAAEEE25.2% °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, at 30 November 2020, the following
persons have or are deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

Capacity and

Name of Director

BEsns

Delicate Edge Limited
(Note 1)
Delicate Edge Limited

(BfiE1)

King Nordic Limited (Note 1)

King Nordic Limited
(Ktat1)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
2B 85~

nature of interest

SO REREE

Beneficial owner and person
acting in concert

ERAAR—BITBHAL

Beneficial owner and person
acting in concert

BB AR —BITHAL

Beneficial owner

BEmEa A

Mr. Lam Pang Beneficial owner
RIS e A4 BEEERA
Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code)
as confirmed by them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping,
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is
deemed to be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge
Limited and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

i%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ{ﬁZ%
mﬁ

BEEME R-Z_TF+—A=1+B AT
At%ﬁ“ﬂ%f’ﬁi*ﬁ?ﬁﬂxf’ﬁqﬂ%*ﬁi%&ﬁf’@k
ERRERBEESZRMEBEIIEXVEF2RFES
D EBZ X RAAN R BIEE 2 #E s KR ~ FAC
BN IRIBEE 5 RV E 50 53361 EAR AR
AR E 2 BRAMZERIRR -

REARARGREBARDZRA :

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares interested issued share
(Note 2) capital
EEREZRAHE AATEBITRA
(Kia£2) BHEDL
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
38,220,000 (L) 9.8%

(1)  Delicate Edge Limitedfi$Z2 EXA L 42 B Eos
A - MKing Nordic Limiteddi i #8tE 542 B E
2HEA ° Delicate Edge LimitedfKing Nordic
Limited# B 5% 98,280,000/% f& 17 * 12 22 &]
B #HITIR A ABEE25.2% ©

HAEEFR LRGBS LEZEER - 5
ZER—HITBA+ (AWETEE T FZA
ZHE) o Bt - MIBFRRBEKG - 2H
JRIEE -~ BB L - Delicate Edge Limited
K King Nordic Limited# £ # 17 43 i Delicate
Edge Limited®King Nordic Limited& 25,2
196,560,000/ 17t F 1 2

(2) FEILIEFRFARGFZRE

o

o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2020, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company
nor their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interest in any other companies as at 30 November
2020 which may, directly or indirectly compete with the Group’s

business.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and
King Nordic Limited, being the controlling shareholders (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, have entered into a
deed of non-competition dated 19 September 2018 in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the Deed of
Non-Competition was set out in the section headed “Relationship with

Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate
Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited up to the date of this annual

report.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules since
the Listing Date and up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed VBG Capital Limited (“VBG”) to be its
compliance adviser. At 30 November 2020, save as the compliance
adviser agreement entered into between the Company and VBG,
neither VBG nor its directors, employees or close associates had any
interest in relation to the Group which is required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
November 2020 were jointly audited by Mazars CPA Limited,
Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong and Mazars LLP, Public
Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP as joint

auditors of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As from 30 November 2020 to the date of this annual report, the
Board is not aware of any significant events that have occurred which
require disclosure herein.

On behalf of the board
Mr. Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 February 2021
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B 0BT AT R

mazars

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
November 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
November 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Joint Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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B 0BT % BLAT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREZEE

Revenue recognition

Wzt SR

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical accounting
estimate and judgement in Note 2 and the disclosures of

revenue in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIEM 22 =2 &5 R IA R B & &b 5t K I T DA R P
42 iR A MBI R U s R

The Group recognised revenue of approximately
RM10,011,000 (2019: approximately RM19,428,000) from
the provision of system integration and development
services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance and

consultancy services for the year ended 30 November 2020.

EEECHRBEE S _SFt+t—A=THILFEZRMH
RPEARAERE B BHEINIRBE A RS RE
RIBR#S 2 Y25 40 B #10,011,000t (ZFE—AF - HEF K
19,428,0007T ) °

REELEE

RRARF R BEN 2 EXRAE - FAREXERR
HEMBRAMRZGEVBREAMEERER
ZEE RAEERERGAVBRRELAR
RECREZEER  RATEHREEESTT
BREBR -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMREBERFNAEEERAREZEE

Our procedures, among others, included:
Bz RF(HhEiE)RE

(a) obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s key internal controls over the contract
revenue recognition including the control over

recording work done, invoicing and cash receipts;

TEEFHE BEEEHAOKRERRZ I 2AMERE
(BRLCHEZKTIE ZBERASWERZERE)ZR
B BITRIRMER B AR

(b) assessing the reasonableness of the basis and

assumptions of the estimated total contract costs;
FHEAET A MR EE s BERBRESAIE

(c) comparing actual total contract costs incurred to
estimated total contract costs of contracts completed
during the year, on a sample basis, to assess the

reasonableness of management’s estimation;

R FRNE KA NTEEZ BR AN AHBE
RAEHAORARE  LFEEEEZEHRTA
1%
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRERSZE(E)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Wi R ()

Revenue from provision of system integration and
development services of approximately RM6,952,000 (2019:
approximately RM16,593,000) is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation using input method
as the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

RERGESRFAEREURBERRSE ZKED RO EE
6,952,0007T( = FE—N%F : 475 #16,593,000T ) iZT 2R
THEBRHNEEZERBN - U AEREBRER - I
R BEBONBOTALARELY BSEBEBERARZN
BE B BEEARGIFITENKEGES B BLARRKIE -

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter
because the amount involved is significant and management
used significant judgements and estimations to determine
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the

performance obligation at the reporting date.

MR LA EBERIEESER  RARS SR
EX HEEERSBERHNEAERHERMAFTEETE
BOTHBEROEEZERBER -

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BREEREE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BARERPNIEEFRBERERSE(E)

performing arithmetical check on the schedule of
the calculation of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
under input method, on a sample basis, based on
the schedule prepared by the management with
information including contract sum, estimated total
contract costs and contract costs incurred (the
“Schedule”); and

REBERBNEBZAONE B HKEARERE
MRAFRBECERR(ERR])  HETHDE
BEFEETHEE RS &

verifying key terms in contracts (including contract
sum, deliverables timetable and milestones),
estimated total contract costs and contract cost
incurred as set out in the Schedule, on a sample basis,
to the respective signed contracts, approved cost
budgets and relevant supporting documents of the

contract costs incurred respectively.
DRMBEREEERFAEHZAORE - Bt KA
BERESHRTEEBEREZESL  KEHRTEE
KNABRAS KB ST HF XM -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRERSE(E)

REEREHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BERERPNNEEFRBERERSE(E)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets

BESRUFARENEEZAREEER ([FAREEER ) ZERRE

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical accounting
estimate and judgement in Note 2 and the disclosures of
trade receivables and contract assets in Note 16 and Note

17 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

IRIBHI S22 & B @ aH B b R BTG S 3 I KBTI 2 5
BIRIEH S 16 R M SE17 2 0 A BB 35 B 5 A 508 &
AWEBERS -

At 30 November 2020, the carrying amount (net of
loss allowance) of trade receivables and contract
assets amounted to approximately RM6,394,000 (2019:
approximately RM7,020,000) and RM166,000 (2019:
approximately RM9,400,000), respectively, represent 19.4%
(2019: 16.4%) and 0.5% (2019: 22.0%) of the total assets of

the Group, respectively.

RZBEZZTF+—A=1+0 BIERBFERENEEZ
BREFE(NREERE) 254 4R K %6,394,0007T (=
FT—NF : 587,020,000 ) & F¥A166,00070 (= F
—NF : 45#89,400,000T)  HRlRE BEBEERE
219.4% (ZF—NF : 4716.4%) %0.5%(=ZF— 1 F :
22.0%) °

Our procedures, among others, included:
Mz BEF (P aiE)RE :

(a) obtaining management’'s assessment of ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets and assessed the
reasonableness of the key underlying information

referenced by the management; and

ESEREBHRUEFARENEENERERERZ
A WRHA BRI AR EREER ZA R
IS4
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BREXRSBE(E)

BREEREE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BARERFNMEEEREBARERSE(E)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

ESRUFAREHNEEZAREEER([FARHEEER ) ZERBREE)

Management performed credit evaluations for the Group’s
customers and assessed ECL of trade receivables and
contract assets. These assessments were focused on the
customers’ settlement record and their current repayment
ability, and also adjusted for forward-looking factors
and took into account information specific to respective
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment

in which the customer operated.

EHEYH BEREZEPETERNMG  LFHEKSOR
RANBENTRREEER ZETH2ERATPNG
BRSEREERCERE N - U H AR MERRETHE
REBEEEPZBEEEAREREF KL MENKER
BRBZEER -

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgements were made by the management in determining

the ECL on trade receivables and contract assets.

BMERM LA EBRERTEERER  RARS AR
BEX HEREERERURERGNEENTEHREES
BREHEARHIE -

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(b)

assessing management'’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the customers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such
as background information of the customers,
concentration risk of customers, the Group’s actual
loss experience (our examination of the customers’
payment records during the current year and
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, as well
as the historical collection records), and the forward-

looking factors specific to the customers.

BBHETETERECZEN  WEFERER - BF
BELERE  FEPEYdER S BS£ENER
FEER(BMNEAFERBEHARE  ARELE
Wi E R P 2 A8 A RE P EYHIBENEE
HEEZ  FIAEREEHRHEEEERE,EENH
B o



INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
OB E R BLET R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the 2020 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our joint auditors’ report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

HtER
BERAESFAHEMENAR  HHWEHNE
B BERR T _EEFHAEEN - EALTE

S

AR B M ISR R AR E I BE s AR A M SR
HAZHRE °

ABEZBMR RSV BHRRERZBERL TR
EHMER  RATTREBEBRTATAZZE

=
b A ©

HEZGEAMBHRERME - NEFEZRE 2 EE
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AUBHRBEEDT B HHRMEERDRZET
IS BRI B BEAHERRAL - B FIERTE
T2 TYEM A E &R B IREAHE R - Bl

BPARRUILEE - ST S - ANBE R BE L
BEMERATER -
EEREEEREHERAMBERZE
(=3

EAREFAERER S LT SR 2E
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REGRIR L 2 576 M MR NE < B AN ER
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BB ERBE®RE

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a joint
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BECBMYELGSMBRRZEM
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BB ERBA®RE

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our joint auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our joint auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BECBMHERGESMBERZER
(%)

o FHEMMERAZEMBRZAEERESMN
Rz @FtH bt RBRREST R AR -

s HTEEERARKELKLRSTERELR
B MREMERZEBABEHERST
EREANBERAFUZIEATHERE
femApe B BERERELERENE
EBEARRE - WERMAHEFEEANEE
A% - RIZARBEZEMBEPREIE
FAMBHRRTZABEEE G/
BETR - MABITRMAZER - B2
fEwmEABE A EZBEEE BB
RF 2 BZBERER - A - REKFRA

HERTTEEH BRETREISELE -

s TERAMBHRZIEBRER HBNA
R(BREEFRE) AR ERA MR
EENPBEEHRZ T ARBREBAR S K

£H-

e 3 EXERNERIEXBIADIMBER
EEGR  EENERRE  AERHEE
BBHRRERBR - HMAE EXEE
T2iEE BERIIT  BAREMCE
BRERAEEHRE -

B (A el ER 2 8EE  KRZHER
EXEZER(BREMEFZTHA L AE
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT &

71



72

INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BB ERBE®RE

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our joint auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

BECBMHERGESMBHRRZER
(%)

HEEEEAEBBZEET  RIFUREPLLE
BHAMBEGAMBRRZEXZA/EE - AM
BRBAREZEE - RIS EHFEREEIRSES
MZEEE - RIFEDISRHIZ L ARBEZ
ERE HEBEFRZERT - HAEERE
BRFEEMER cBHRRAERMEZBARA
BEHEZ NS AM A EAERS D RER S ER

A

communication.

Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

25 February 2021

The engagement director of
Mazars CPA Limited on the
audit jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate number:
P07321

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Mazars LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants of
Singapore

135 Cecil Street

#10-01

Singapore 069536

25 February 2021

The engagement partner of
Mazars LLP on the audit
jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

Tan Chee Tyan

m ©
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MEBKRERA R =E Y
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ZEMBE2HE RERRT R 2 352
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REZEEEEA: BEEFA:
FRE BRF H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEaREMEEKRER

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

2020 2019
et et 323 —Z-NEF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
K et BE¥TFr EFr
Revenue & 4 10,011 19,428
Cost of services and materials sold BR 7% K B &M BB AR (8,524) (13,556)
Gross profit EF 1,487 5,872
Other income E g A 5 216 390
Administrative expenses TBAX (9,825) (4,576)
Finance costs AhE A 6 (83) (65)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & EREEE 14 (2,226) —
Impairment loss on trade receivables % 5 &Yz I8 B E B8 29 (761) (238)
(Loss) Profit before income tax BRATSBLAT (B 1R) =R 6 (11,192) 1,383
Income tax expenses PSR X 9 — (71)
(Loss) Profit for the year FE(ER)ER (11,192) 1,312
Other comprehensive Hig 2w (B)
income (expenses)
Item that may be reclassified HE At EF B2 8
subsequently to profit or loss ZIHEH
Exchange difference on translation of REFINIB AR ZEN =8
foreign subsidiaries 36 (354)
Total comprehensive (expenses) FEXEABAX)KE
income for the year (11,156) 958
(Loss) Earnings per share, BR(EE)BA(EEAREE)
basic and diluted (RM cents) (B%5) 10 (2.87) 0.34
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B R R AR

At 30 November 2020 A=ZE=-FF+—H=+H

2019
—T-NEF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
KtaF B% T T T
Non-current assets RBEE

Property, plant and equipment L E T YN 12 2,185 3,245
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 13 838 —
Intangible assets EEE 14 2,977 3,448
6,000 6,693

Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E bW IR 16 7,524 9,658
Contract assets BREE 17 166 9,400
Restricted bank balances ZIR BRI TR B 18 309 708
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 19 18,876 16,262
26,875 36,028

Current liabilities nEBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBENKE 20 5,800 6,388
Contract liabilities AHEE 17 2,144 150
Income tax payables FERTFT1S R 1,026 1,235
Interest-bearing borrowings AREE 21 853 857
Obligations under finance leases BMEREERT 22 — 136
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 223 —
10,046 8,766

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR &R

At 30 November 2020 A=ZE=-FF+—H=+H

2020 2019

—EIRF —Z-NEF

Notes RM’000 RM’000

Hfat BE¥TFr EFr

Net current assets REEEFE 16,829 27,262

Total assets less current liabilities #EERABARS 22,829 33,955
Non-current liabilities EREBEE

Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 23 12 12

Obligations under finance leases BMERERT 22 — 713

Lease liabilities HEAE 13 743 —

755 725

NET ASSETS EESFHE 22,074 33,230
Capital and reserves BEXRFEE

Share capital A& 24 2,067 2,067

Reserves Eeia] 20,007 31,163

TOTAL EQUITY RS 22,074 33,230

These consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 163 were F73EE163HEMEGAEMBRENR-ZZS=—F=

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 February 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Chong Yee Ping

EEIR
Director

EE

AZ+hARERSHAERKETE  YHTIE
ERREE

Liu Yan Chee James
2B E5
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 November 2020 &2 LT ==

F+—A=+tHILFE

Reserves
1
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
e i gupintd ERGR g RitEE FeE)
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note 24)  (Note 26(a))  (Note 26(b))  (Note 26(c))
(Wizted)  (Wiioe)  (Hit26()  (Writ2e(c)
At 1 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA-H 2,067 28,732 4,952 — (3,479) 32,272
Profit for the year FERF — — — = 1,312 1,312
Other comprehensive expenses: ~ HEA2EMEY :
ltem that may be reclassified RGN B2 A
subsequently to profit or loss ZEH
Exchange difference on translation of £ E/85MHBAF)
foreign subsidiaries JEREER — - - (354) = (354)
Total comprehensive income FE2EENE
for the year — — — (354) 1,312 958
At 30 November 2019 RZB-AE+-A=+A 2,067 28732 4,952 (354) (2,167) 33,230

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

Reserves
ke
Share Share Capital Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses
B R aE EXfGE B ZitiE
RM°000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FEFR GEFr -1 5o -1 a0 -1 5o -1 5o
(Note 24)  (Note 26(a)) ~ (Note 26(b))  (Note 26(c))
(Bztoa)  (Wit26(a)  (Hit26(0)  (Wiit2e(c)
At 1 December 2019 RZE-hE+ZA-H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (354) (2,167) 33,230
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (11,192) (11,192)
Other comprehensive income: A2 EKE
ltem that may be reclassified EG a7 B2 A
subsequently to profit or loss ZEH
Exchange difference on translation of £ E/85MiBAF)
foreign subsidiaries LERER - - - 36 - 36
Total comprehensive expenses FER2EERY
for the year - - - 36 (11,192) (11,156)
At 30 November 2020 R-B-8F+-A=+H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (318) (13,359) 22,074

2020 ANNUAL REPORT &

77



78

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —T-NEF
RM’000 RM’000
BHFr EETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESES
(Loss) Profit before income tax KPS iR (B8 )% 7 (11,192) 1,383
Adjustments for: BLTRAIEB (B A%
Amortisation 5 1,930 350
Depreciation e 623 306
Impairment loss on intangible assets EFE ERERRE 2,226 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables E SN R ERE 761 238
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - #ER
plant and equipment R EE — 1
Exchange difference ERER 36 (354)
Interest income AISRON (156) (332)
Interest expenses B 83 65
Cash flows (used in) generated from REESBHA 2EE
operations before movements (FTAELXZRERE
in working capital (5,689) 1,657
Change in working capital: BB G
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A e RIE 1,330 (4,831)
Contract assets and liabilities BHEERERE 11,228 (4,649)
Restricted bank balances RS RITEE R 399 (183)
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M ERFRIE (588) (3,951)
Cash generated from (used in) EEELA(FTRA) RS
operations 6,680 (11,957)
Income tax paid B ATEE (209) (871)
Net cash from (used in) operating ReEEHEE(FAA)
activities ZHEFHE 6,471 (12,828)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE -
equipment Y (39) (1,126)
Additions to intangible assets NEEWAE (3,685) (3,669)
Interest received BHFE 156 332

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2020 2019
—EC-TF —ZE-NF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMAZEEFHE (3,568) (4,463)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mESE S
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings Bt EEE 4) (37)
Repayment of obligations under BEmE
finance leases HERME — (129)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (202) —
Interest paid EAfFIB (83) (65)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZBFRAZRLSTFE (289) (231)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERBELEEYZ
cash equivalents EmOHD) F5E 2,614 (17,522)
Cash and cash equivalents at REHIZ2RER
the beginning of the reporting period Re%EY 16,262 33,784
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of REHRZREE
the reporting period, represented by RESEEY  LURIT
bank balances and cash EHRTESEY 18,876 16,262
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Mindtell Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 27 February 2018. The Company’s shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 22 October 2018. The address of the
Company'’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 1802, 18/F,
Ruttonjee House, Ruttonjee Centre, 11 Duddell Street, Central,
Hong Kong. The Group’s headquarter is situated at B-7-7,
Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya,

Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding
company. The Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of system
integration and development services, |IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

RAERREREE

Mindtell Technology Limited([ A2 &] )
R_ZE—-NEFE-_A-+tAERSHEF
A MR R AR AR o AR BRMD R
“E-NFTAT_RAEEEBRERS
FBARAR([BRAIGEMET « AR
A & it #¥ B 5= 2 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands * &
BRETEEEMB AT BT REEZFIE 1
HERBUAT ORBUAANE18B1802FE ° A
£ B 7 48 31 AB-7-7, Sky Park @ One
City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang
Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) and all amounts have been rounded

to the nearest thousand (“RM’000”), unless otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the basis consistent with accounting policies adopted in
2019 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year or the Group elected to early

adopt in the current year.

TESTTEHE
BREH

BESFEMBHRREREHBER S ER
ZEg([HRETEAZES]) B E
B BmEEA (BRI REER])
HABR et EAZ8eRMZMBEER
fiEl 1) B B B 75 ¥R 5 £ R~ BIRR & 51 A
(B e ER ) RREBNGRE) R BB
REAGHIZBEBERERSE - LEHREH
TR IR 1T A B X BT GEMEE 25 £ 48 Bl
(TGEMETRAN ) ZBREERE

HAEVBBRRAFTE(FEDZ5 - &K
REFRAN  FEERIERERO T
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MBMRFIRAN SR - RO EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised IFRSs:

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
to IFRSs
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation
IFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent

Concessions

Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2015-2017 Cycle

IAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

The amendments clarify that (a) if a specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and (b) funds borrowed specifically to obtain
an asset other than a qualifying asset are included as part of

general borrowings.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 supports the requirements in IAS 12 Income Taxes by
specifying how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting

for income taxes.

The adoption of IFRIC 23 does not have any significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 19: Employee Benefits

The amendments require the use of updated assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder

of the reporting period after a change is made to a plan.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

Amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) instead of at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”)

if specified conditions are met.

The adoption of the amendments to IFRS 9 does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)
IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 and related Interpretations for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It significantly
changes, among others, the lessee accounting by replacing
the dual model under IAS 17 with a single model which requires
a lessee to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for the rights and obligations created by all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. For lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 also requires enhanced
disclosures to be provided by lessees and lessors.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
applied IFRS 16 for the first time at 1 December 2019 (i.e.
the date of initial application, the “DIA”) using the modified
retrospective approach in which comparative information
has not been restated. Instead, the Group recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment
to the balance of accumulated profits or other component of
equity, where appropriate, at the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical expedient
not to reassess whether a contract was, or contained, a lease
at the DIA and the Group applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and to
contracts entered into or changed on or after the DIA that are

identified as leases applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2020 HE —E -ZTF+—F=+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee

Before the adoption of IFRS 16, lease contracts were classified
as operating or finance lease in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Group accounted for the leases
in accordance with the transition provisions of IFRS 16 and the

Group’s accounting policies applicable from the DIA.

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases previously classified as operating leases at the DIA,
except for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value,
and the Group applied the following practical expedients on a

lease-by-lease basis:

(a) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with

reasonably similar characteristics.

(b) Adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by the
provision for onerous leases recognised immediately
before the DIA by applying IAS 37, as an alternative to

performing an impairment review at the DIA.

(c) Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
to leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the DIA.

(d)  Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the

right-of-use assets at the DIA.

(e) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2020 HHE —E-ZTF+— A =+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)
IFRS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating leases

(continued)

At the DIA, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease basis,

measured at either:

(a) their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied
since the commencement date, but discounted using the

lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the DIA; or

(b) an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised immediately before the
DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied to the lease liabilities at

the DIA is 4.8% per annum.

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed
applying IAS 17 at 30 November 2019 and lease liabilities

recognised at the DIA is as follows:
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Operating lease commitments at 30 November 2019 (Note 13) RZZ-NF+—A=THMEERERENH13) 104
Add: Liabilities for termination option previously not m: ERRRMELEHERERHEL

reflected in operating lease commitments EREAR 74

Liabilities for leases previously classified as AABAREHRENHERE

finance lease (Note 22) (/]/?522) 849

Less: Future finance charges W RREBRAZ (10)

Lease liabilities at 1 December 2019 RZZE-NF+-A—ANHAEEE 1,017
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Year ended 30 November 2020 HE —E -ZTF+—F=+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group measures the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities at the DIA at the carrying amount of
the lease assets and lease liabilities immediately before that
date measured applying IAS 17. The Group accounts for those
leases applying IFRS 16 from the DIA.

As lessee

At the DIA, lease liabilities including those previously presented
under “obligations under finance leases” were shown
separately as “lease liabilities” on the consolidated statement of

financial position.

As a result, adjustments were made at the DIA to reflect the

changes in presentation:
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30 November 2019
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under IFRS 16 on
1 December 2019

Adjustments

Bl &R B R B 7 8 5 22 B
F1THRET F165ET
R=ZB-h#F R=Z-hEF
t—A=tHZEHA #AE  T-P-HZEKHEE
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
FEFT FEFT FETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME . HEREE 3,245 (778) 2,467
Right-of-use assets RRREEE — 946 946
Current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HE&E — 269 269
Obligations under finance leases BMEMREERT 136 (136) —
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Lease liabilities HEARE — 748 748
Obligations under finance leases BERERMT 713 (713) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2020 BiZE —ZE-—ZTF+—A=+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees
to account for such rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications. It applies to COVID-19-related rent concessions
that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June 2021. The

amendments do not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted. The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments in the current year. In accordance with the
transition provisions therein, the amendments have been
applied retrospectively by the Group recognising the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated losses and

therefore the comparative information has not been restated.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements is historical cost.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as that of the Company using consistent

accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation,
are measured initially either at fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice
of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value, unless another measurement basis is

required by IFRSs.
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having

a deficit balance.
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the

Company.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in ownership interest (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date
when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position as set out in
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of the subsidiary
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and/or receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
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reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Buildings 50 years =l 504
Leasehold improvements 10 years ey 104
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10 years RIE HERPATHRE 104
Motor vehicles 5 years S5 E 54
Computer equipment 2.5 -3 years EA R 2.5—3%F

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.
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Intangible assets BREE
Research and development costs 3 B 2K

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
to complete the development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss as an expense as incurred. When
the asset is available for use, the capitalised development
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3
years. For intangible assets yet to be available for use, they are

stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset but it does not retain control of the financial

asset.
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are

initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at FVOCI; (iii) equity investment measured at FVOCI; or (iv)

measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which case
all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first annual reporting period following the change in the

business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

M

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated at
FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

(i)  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables, restricted bank balances

and bank balances and cash.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in

the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the

financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings, obligations under
finance leases and lease liabilities. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant,

in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost and contract assets to which the impairment
requirements apply in accordance with IFRS 9. Except for
the specific treatments as detailed below, at each reporting
date, the Group measures a loss allowance for a financial
asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit
risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an

amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r A B 3% R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HE —E -ZTF+—F=+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the

financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more

shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the

financial instrument.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial

instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) FTESHEE &)

Financial instruments (continued) EMIA(E)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9 REERBRFEREIRAENEH
(continued) BERBERAMER (&)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular, the

following information is taken into account in the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external or internal credit rating (if available);
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. actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet

its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, except
for the receivables for which the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that previous non-
payments were an administrative oversight, instead of resulting
from financial difficulty of the borrower, or that there is no
correlation between significant increases in the risk of a default
occurring and financial assets on which payments are more

than 30 days past due.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual

cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow

obligations.

Other receivables, restricted bank balances and bank balances

and cash are determined to have low credit risk.
Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, without a significant
financing components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r A B 3% R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HE —E -ZTF+—F=+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about

the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep

discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash
flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount based
on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is as

follows:

(i) system integration and development services
(i) IT outsourcing services

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and identifies
as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the

customer either:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of

transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if

both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service either
on its own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or service

is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or

service is distinct within the context of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises

revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer controls

as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from system integration and development services
and consultancy services is recognised over time because
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Sales of externally acquired/purchased hardware and software
for system integration and development services is recognised
at a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is

passed.

IT outsourcing services income is recognised over time when

services are rendered.

Maintenance services income is recognised over time on a

straight-line basis over the life of the related agreements.

For revenue recognised over time under IFRS 15, provided
the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably
measured, the Group applies the input method (i.e. based
on the proportion of the actual inputs deployed to date as
compared to the estimated total inputs) to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation because there is a direct relationship between the
Group’s inputs and the transfer of control of goods or services
to the customers and reliable information is available to the
Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that
it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance

obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component
(i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised consideration for the effects of the
time value of money. The effect of the significant financing
component is recognised as an interest income or interest
expense separately from revenue from contracts with

customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate
with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at contract
inception by reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate
implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts the
cash selling price of the goods or services to the amount paid
in advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the
Group’s borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness

information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect
of the significant financing component if the period of financing

is one year or less.
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-

impaired financial assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract
is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable
is the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.

In accordance with the standard payment schedules of the
Group, payments are normally not due or received from
the customer until the services are completed or when the
goods are delivered. However, for such transactions, revenue
is recognised over time and therefore, a contract asset
is recognised until it becomes a receivable or payments
are received. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the contract asset
and recognised as interest income.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RM because the Group’s transactions are
mainly conducted in RM, which is the functional currency
of the operating subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia. The
Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$").

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 BiZE —ZE-—ZTF+—A=+HILFE

FTESHEE®H)
ANEERANER

A REEBR TP N HER AN K
IHENASERIRBEERTER - &
HMBZ2FIREMNEE - TEREZARK
FEZEMEE - HR - HEFIMA
B IAEEBEREGERERESSE
ARAEEREFEREMXRERN &
A AE R A REI BN AREE
RE)RZIIR/EHNAE - BEFE/LSE
B E R E N BB RE A PR R R
2 BUSHEREF -

0

E AR —HBEBAONEHNEEFE
9

FENABFEEZ) - BEANZENE

AN
=
A\ AN
=] =

REHBET MEFEREERT) -

7
7

3

RIBAEBHRENRERR - —KRER
T EEZKRBIRXMNEmEF - 577
SRMA AT YR - Rl - REFXS
mE - W IEERE®ER - it - a0E
E Y EL PR A B YR R By 3 WA A SR AR
R RN HE - FRMERRE S (HE
RS ARKNEERNLER BT SWA -

SN BRE

AEEEERZVWBHEMIIER HRE
BREMEZIZEERR2ER ([EE
BB E - SEUBBRREFEZS
RRARKREEZRHTEUAREBRNER
AR EEMBRARIZYERFEE
17 ARBZEEER/ET(ET])

INERFHRRFEAZRITERBER
NEEER - ARERHEE RIZHREX
BEDSNEHECEREERABMEL
ZER B - ARBaEPHER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented, are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate.

° all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

o on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and a disposal involving the loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

° on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling
interests in that foreign operation and are not reclassified

to profit or loss; and

. on all other partial disposals, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there
is any indication that its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and the Company’s
investment in a subsidiary may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In addition, the Group
tests its intangible assets that are yet to be available for use
for impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an
annual basis or whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of intangible assets not yet available for
use is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit (“CGU")).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Applicable from 1 December 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a

single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the

basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) FEETBRE®)

Leases (continued) HEHE)

Applicable from 1 December 2019 (continued) BE=—E—NF+=-A—HBEHE)
As lessee (continued) TERFRTN (&)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
(b) any leases payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to

produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case
depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the

underlying asset) as follows:
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement

date of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 December 2019 (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the

commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),

less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate

the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the

incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments

made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the

Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) FEETBRE®)

Leases (continued) HEHE)

Applicable from 1 December 2019 (continued) BE=-E—NF1+=-A—HBEHE)
As lessee (continued) TERFRTN (&)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the
in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating
interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Group

remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the

remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B35 R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HHE —E-ZTF+— A =+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 December 2019 (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative standalone price as

described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified

contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to

the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a

corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Applicable from 1 December 2019 (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided in
Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
and does not assess whether eligible rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
are lease modification. The Group accounts for any change in
lease payments resulting from the rent concession the same
way it would account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the

change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic

and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to
all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics and in

similar circumstances.
Applicable before 1 December 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Applicable before 1 December 2019 (continued)

Finance leases, as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease obligation. Finance
charges, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired,
are charged to profit or loss over the term of the relevant
lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting

period.
Operating leases, as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately

from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for
the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not

recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deterred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will net reverse

in the foreseeable future.
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group,

that is defined as:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of the holding company of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B35 R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HHE —E-ZTF+— A =+HILFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a holding

company of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the holding company of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r A B 3% R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HE —E -ZTF+—F=+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) FESTERE 2)

Related parties (continued) BT (48)

Close members of the family of a person are those family —BANLTZEBERZATEHZERETT
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced BEER  EHfEerEzBATHTZ

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

AANLTREZFKEKE  WBHE:
(a) RABALZFEREBHREEHAE

(b) ZBALZEBXREHRZTF
7Rk

(c) ZEBALHZEALERBRRARM
BrEHA -

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes REB T2 EHRFP e A B EZHE
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes NalzB AR - é%ﬁ%@%%ﬁé%
subsidiaries of the joint venture. TEIZMBAT

Segment reporting o EEHRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purpose of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

BEMBBRERAMEBZELDBRESD
BMEBZEE  DEEMRAKRESER
DERMIBLE 2 BIR D B M RIRFF N
AAKESRSTREEERHEZVBER
FEBRIFH o

RPBHREMS - @RIERZEED M
SREHE  HERFRULERBREE
mERBMEE AEBEME BEFEH
HER - DIREMBIRERBE B ZIE
AR EERFEEE D EELZ 2 BRI
BRI NERZEZED A HEBAELD %ZF
BE - TAIARERE -
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision
and future periods, in case the revision also affects future

periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful lives of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets based on the experience of actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions or expected
useful lives of assets, after taking into account of estimated
technology life cycle. The estimated useful lives could be
different as a result of technical innovations which could affect
the related depreciation and amortisation charges included in

profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use

assets and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are impaired when an indication of impairment exists
or when annual impairment testing is required. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, which is equal to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal or the value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the management to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Any impairment will be

charged to profit or loss.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B35 R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HHE —E-ZTF+— A =+HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HIL&FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit
in the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine the

incremental borrowing rate.
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets by using various inputs
and assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss
rate. The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which
is based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables and contract assets. Details of the
key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue from system integration and
development services and consultancy services over time
by reference to the progress of satisfaction of performance
obligations of each project at the reporting date. The progress is
determined based on actual inputs, such as staff costs, deployed
on each project and the respective input costs comparing to the
estimated total service costs of each project by tracing to the
contracts signed with respective customers. The computation of
the progress and estimation of total service costs for each project

require the use of judgement and estimates.

FTESHEE &)
BEE L R (&)
HEHEEETHEE— FBRBEA

ARMEETPRENNXTREZIETE - A
SEERAHAEEERARBBRARKE
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EBRERME -

BHIEEERZEREE
AEBEHEEER TR ABUERRR
BREVRBRBEHEBBRRUGESE
WHRIBERAENEEZEBERER - b5t FE
BEXATHERR HERAKE ZBER
A BRITHARR S MERARZAIEMLE
£ o WIBEF RS TR - AREES
FEEIHRUFARANEENEREE -
M AREEBEEMANEIERR REA
BEANFBHNRE W MAMEE29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future changes in IFRSs

At the date of approving these consolidated financial

statements, the IASB has issued the following new/revised

IFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the

Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to IASs 1 and 8

Amendments to 1AS 39,
IFRSs 7 and 9

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to 1AS 39,
IFRSs 4,7,9and 16

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37
Amendments to IFRS 3

Annual Improvements to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to [AS 8

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Definition of Material *

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 17

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 °

Proceeds before Intended Use *

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract *

Reference to the Conceptual Framework *
2018-2020 Cycle *

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
Disclosures of Accounting Policies ®

Definition of Accounting Estimates ®

Insurance Contracts ®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture ©

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of

the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
6 The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new/

revised IFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on

the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being identified as the chief operating decision makers
(the “CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered or services provided. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

are:
(i) system integration and development services;
(ii)  IT outsourcing services; and

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services.
Segment revenue and results

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue represents revenue derived from the system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

Segment results represent the gross profit reported by each
segment without allocation of other income, administrative
expenses, finance costs, impairment loss on intangible assets
and trade receivables and income tax expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM of the Group for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the
CODM for review.

In addition, the Group’s place of domicile is Malaysia, where

the central management and control is located.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r A B 3% R AR B ‘I

Year ended 30 November 2020 HE —E -ZTF+—F=+HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. oEERE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) BB RREEE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the RBE_T_TFR-_FT-NE+—A
reportable segments for the years ended 30 November 2020 ZtHLEFE  RAUZHFHBREEEE
and 2019 is as follows: RREREZDHERDT
System
integration Maintenance
and IT and
development outsourcing consultancy
services services services Total
ZHEEER B BER
R R SRR R AR A @t
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
-1 V-1 BT BYTT
Year ended 30 November 2020 BE-Z-EF+-A=1H
LFE
Revenue from external REMDEP 2R R
customers and reportable segment ] 2H® 5 EUES
revenue 8,084 1,086 841 10,011
Reportable segment results PEEGEES 133 538 816 1,487
Other information: BEH
Amortisation B 1,930 — — 1,930
Addition of intangible assets REEFEE 3,685 — — 3,685
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & EEE 2,226 — — 2,226
Impairment loss on trade receivables 2 5 & IB kB E 811 — (50) 761
Year ended 30 November 2019 HE-Z-NF+-A=1H
EFE
Revenue from external REMBES 2 Wz R
customers and reportable segment ] 25 Ui
revenue 17,864 771 793 19,428
Reportable segment results A ERHHEE 5,193 396 283 5,872
Other information: EMEH
Amortisation 5] 350 — = 350
Addition of intangible assets RERVEE 3,669 — — 3,669
Research and development expenses #1352 152 — — 152
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 EWZIER EE R 188 = 50 238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. oBERE)
Reconciliation of reportable segment results A28 DEHEE ZH R
2020 2019
—e-%5 e
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
Reportable segment results AI2WHBEE 1,487 5,872
Unallocated income and expenses: ROBMAKRAS :
Other income HAb WA 216 390
Administrative expenses 1TER R X (9,825) (4,576)
Finance costs BhE A (83) (65)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & EREEIE (2,226) -
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 R BREE B (761) (238)
(Loss) Profit before income tax B AT S B AT (B518 ) (11,192) 1,383
Income tax expenses FTieRiM X — (71)
(Loss) Profit for the year FE (B )EF (11,192) 1,312
Geographical information hEER

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (the “Specified Non-current
Assets”). The geographical location of revenue is based on the
location of external customers. The geographical location of the
Specified Non-current Assets is based on the physical location
of the assets (in the case of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, the location of operation to which they
are located, in the case of intangible assets, the location of
operations).

TREIBR)AKERBIBES 2K
@ ROINAEBZYE - HER&E -
EREEEANETLEE(BEFRBE
EDZHBENE AR - W2 BV E
TIRBHNBEPZHEME - HEFRD
BEZWEUEDREBEEZERME (D
BYE  HERREBAREREEE - 8
HFfRREEME  WBETEE QS
BBIMNE)MIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(a) Revenue from external customers

3. pEERE)
#hEER ()
(a) KEIBEFZ Wz

2020 2019
—g=%F —ThnE

RM’000 RM’000

BT BMFT

Malaysia Bk 10,011 19,379
Singapore bk — 49
10,011 19,428

(b) Specified Non-current Assets

At 30 November 2020 and 2019, all the Specified Non-
current Assets are located in Malaysia.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or
more of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 30
November 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

(b)) HBEHGEBEE
R-ZE-EFER-_ZT—NF+—A
=+H FERTERDEEMR
BT -

FRETEREFZ2ER

REERNERMAEEHE ST _TF K=

E-NF+—AZTHLEEEZHRKZFE

10% A E2BE 2 WG ¢

2020 2019
—E=%% —2-nE

RM’000 RM’000

B¥TFr BMFT

Customer A BEA 5,066 8,102
Customer B ZFB 1,277 (Note) (Htit)
Customer C BEC 1,252 3,890
Customer D EFD (Note) (Hist) 3,150

Note: The customer individually did not contribute 10% or more of the

total revenue of the Group for the relevant year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

4. REVENUE g
2020 2019
—EoBE —T-NF
RM’000 RM’'000
B¥%Fr BT
Revenue from contract with customers BB 81 753k & #E BI85 1557 FT 5
within IFRS 15 ZEBEFPANNE
System integration and EHBA KFARRE
development services
Services provided Frie it AR 7% 6,952 16,593
Sales of externally acquired/ HEINIR RS E B
purchased hardware and software &L 1,132 1,271
8,084 17,864
IT outsourcing services A BRI BR TS 1,086 771
Maintenance and consultancy services — #1& & B 1 AR 7% 841 793
10,011 19,428
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥TFr EFr
Timing of revenue recognition: Wozs tEZR 2 FEETI1E -
At a point in time F—r5Eh 1,132 1,271
Over time e A 51 8,879 18,157
10,011 19,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

5. OTHER INCOME HAslr A
2020 2019
—E-BE —ZT—NF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥%Fr BFT
Exchange gain, net P 3, W 2 5 28 — 31
Government grant T #E B 52 —
Interest income FBYA 156 332
Others Eh 8 27
216 390

6. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

This is stated after charging:

BR AT S AT (B 18) = F

BRPSBLAT (B8 )R AAHRR 5 S IR TE

2020 2019
i Semg 23 —E-NF
RM’000 RM’000
BT ST
Finance costs BE R A
Interest expenses on interest-bearing T EEEZF S
borrowings 34 42
Finance charges on obligations under FEMRESEZ/@MEEA
finance leases — 23
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBBEC RMEER 49 —
83 65
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

6. (LOSS)PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 6. FRATSBIAI(EE)EF &)

2020 2019
—E-FF ZE-NF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
Staff costs and related expenses BIRAREREMX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BEESHH)
Salaries, allowances and e RMREMEY
other benefits in kind gl 7,077 7,383
Contributions to defined TEFRMH G E 2 (R
contribution plans 602 570
7,679 7,953
Represented by: RE :
Staff costs for administrative and THEHEEETLZ
sales staff 8 TR K 1,912 1,553
Staff costs for IT staff included in BHBEETAHB IR -
administrative expenses FFATTBAX 1,930 —
Staff costs for research and WERS 2 BITRA
development expenses — 152
Staff costs allocated to EREE RIS 2
“Cost of services” B ITKA 3,741 4,116
Staff costs charged to profit or loss FFABRZEIHRA 7,583 5,821
Staff costs capitalised as BEERMMEAEREAE]
“Intangible assets” ZBIKRAK 96 2,132
7,679 7,953
Other items Hhm g
Amortisation of intangible assets, B EESH
included in administrative expenses GtATTBREX) 1,930 350
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 7 A 515 478
Cost of materials sold EEM B AR 912 1,065
Depreciation of property, Y - W R ERE
plant and equipment e 321 306
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 302 —
Exchange loss, net HNEEBIFRE 38 =
Operating lease expense KEBEER — 128
Research and development expenses 2 H Sz — 152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EEMe

In addition to the directors’ fee, certain directors of the BREZWEI  ARBAZETEETREE
Company received remuneration from the Group during the —E_EFER_T-AF+—A=+HIE
years ended 30 November 2020 and 2019 for their appointment FERNEEAEBBBEH  WEAKRS
as employees of these entities. The aggregate amounts of BEZELALSTERBEEZHMWN REE=
remuneration received and receivable by the directors of the ToERER-T-NFE+—HA=+THILE
Company during the years ended 30 November 2020 and 2019 BER AR EEEREEREN 2
are set out below. BEFWT -

Year ended 30 November 2020 BE-—E-EH5+—-A=1+HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits Discretionary contribution

fees in kind bonus plans
E A= 4
REM EEHEX
BUEA migfeaL  EzAR
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RIM’000
BHFT BEFT BEFT BHFT BYFT

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEWEE — 361 — 9 370
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2B EE — 254 — 9 263

Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang SRS — 191 - — 191
Mr. Lam Pang s LA — 191 — - 191

Independent non-executive BV #HiTEE

directors
Mr. Chan San Ping BRAEFEE — 70 — — 70
Mr. Su Chi Wen BBt E - 70 — — 70
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella  f[EF&+ - 70 - — 70

— 1,207 — 18 1,225
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7.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 30 November 2019

7. EEME#)
(E-—E—NE+—A=THILEE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary ~ contribution
fees in kind bonus plans Total
e =R
REAM ERHR
ek BEWEr WIERL  FEIZHR fEt
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
FEFT EEFr HEFT FEFT FEFT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EHETE — 254 — 9 263
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2RBEE — 231 — 9 240
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang B RE — 143 — — 143
Mr. Lam Pang Pt — 175 — — 175
Independent non-executive  BUHETEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping RAETRE — 68 — — 68
Mr. Su Chi Wen BROURE — 68 — — 68
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella  ffEF &+ — 68 — — 68
— 1,007 — 18 1,025

During the years ended 30 November 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30 November
2020 and 2019.

REBEEZZE-_EFR=_F—NLF+—A8
STHIEFE  AEEREQTANZEE
EXNEBM - LAEARSIEMASKRAMNA
NEBE R 2 ZE - EREBEMBE -
HREENEIRBERERBEEZE T _TF
R=ZZE—NF+—A=ZF+AHLFEZEM
& 2k
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 30 November 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

EEEEHFAL

RBE_Z_ZFER_ZF-NAF+—AH
:-I—EIJJ:EBZ CREZEFALTZOE
T

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
—ECEH —T—NF
Director EX: 2 2
Non-director FES 3
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid non-
director individuals are as follows:

LRESFHIFEEALZFMFENOT

2020 2019
—g-%5 —2-nE

RM’000 RM’000
E% T BT T
Salaries, allowances and other e RMREMEYREH
benefits in kind 677 673
Contributions to defined TEFEHERNET Bl 2 3R
contribution plans 49 46
726 719

The number of these non-director individuals whose
emoluments fell within the following emoluments band is as
follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T

WEFEFALZHEN T TS EE
ZAEIAT ¢

During the years ended 30 November 2020 and 2019, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of these highest
paid non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office. None
of these highest non-director paid individuals waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30
November 2020 and 2019.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FBFHMAX
2020 2019
=E-BH —E-NEF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
Current tax B HAR 1R
Malaysia corporate income tax BRFAE R EMRET
(“Malaysia CIT”) ([HRAEREMSH]) — 68
Deferred tax BB E — 3
Total income tax expenses AEEMEHMAXAE
for the year — 71

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") are exempted from income
tax. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong.

Malaysia CIT has not been provided as the Group incurred a
loss for taxation purpose for the year ended 30 November 2020.
Malaysia CIT is calculated at 24% of the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 30 November 2019. Malaysia
incorporated entities with paid-up capital of RM2.5 million or
less enjoy tax rate of 17% on the first RM500,000 and remaining
balance of the estimated assessable profits at tax rate of 24%
for the year ended 30 November 2019.

RRASHEENEABRLHS ([RERLE
BRI EEERERRANEWAE
B BRARELEN KB B BELER
BUg ) BRI BB BN ST TR -

HRAAEEREE_T-_TF+—A=+
HIEFERBIBEERE  RAERFK
PRI IREE - ERATE
FRBREE—S—NF+—A=+THL
FRBRMAFTERB G Z224% 5t E - &
BB KA E#2 500,000k AT 25K
A EEERBEE-_S—NLF+—A
= +HIEFERFERNGEN 2 BEFE
500,000 T IZFL 17 % E0 i - M eR BB IR
K2A% T
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. (“Mixsol”) and Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd.
(“Tandem”) have obtained the pioneer status effective from
23 September 2011 and 7 December 2012, respectively. A
pioneer status company is eligible for exemption from income
tax on eligible activities and products for five years and subject
to submitting a formal request to the Malaysia Investment
Development Authority on or prior to expiration date and upon
the Ministry of International Trade and Industry confirming
that Mixsol and Tandem have been complying with all the
applicable conditions as imposed, the tax relief period shall be
extended for a further five years after each five-year tax relief
period ends.

The pioneer status for Mixsol has been renewed during the year
ended 30 November 2016 and subject to next renewal on or
prior to 22 September 2021. The renewal of the pioneer status
for Tandem has been submitted and was rejected on 27 August
2019 due to change in government policy on the pioneer status.
As a result, the Inland Revenue Board of Malaysia requested
supplementary income tax payment from Tandem during the
year ended 30 November 2019. Upon the rejection, Tandem
is subject to Malaysia CIT in the absence of approval for the
extension of pioneer status since the year ended 30 November
2019.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

P8R (@)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. ([ Mixsol]) & Tandem
Advisory Sdn. Bhd. ([ Tandem |) & Bl 1%
FETEMAN DB ——F A
Zt+=BRZE-—Z—HF+ZAtHELE
B FBTEMN 2 ARIEERAIRESF
EEREBREMEGHEHHE WA
RIEMBHRZARSRATEREERR
RRXERRF  KREBREZNIERDME
REETFEMZABERGS - RERH
FRMEBERE - RHHAE—FERR
¢ o

REBE_ZT—X"F+—A=THLLFE
MixsolZ T T 272 FEE - AR
—E - FAAZFTZHRKZAIBARE
48 o Tandem Z 3781 T ¥ fy BHK D IR
ToMEHRERT R T ENBTREE
g HEER-_ZT-AENA-+LRAHEE
4o EIlt 0 BARAGHLE B ERKTandem
HEBEE—_T—NEF+—A=1+HLFE
ZHTSH - RBEMIEB®E  ETHILET
EHE T M0 21BN T + TandemZB#
REBEZZE—NEF+—A=1HLFE
HZERADRCENSH -

Reconciliation of income tax expenses FriSHif X 2 ¥ ER
2020 2019
—E-SF —T-hF
RM’000 RM’000
BMFT 1. o
(Loss) Profit before income tax KR PTIS A0 A (B 1) 4 7 (11,192) 1,383
Income tax at applicable tax rate REBR RN E 2 R (2,288) 490
Non-deductible expenses Ik 1,922 527
Tax incentives on the pioneer status T M 2 BIEESR — (1,025)
Unrecognised tax losses RIERTIIEEE 426 =
Others Hth (60) 79
Income tax expenses Frisfif — 71

The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of rates
prevailing in the territories in which the Group’s entities operate
against profit or loss before tax. The change in applicable tax
rate is caused by changes in the taxable results of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective countries in which the Group
operates.
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10. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 10.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
information:

(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to  F{EsTE &AL EAR K&
the owners of the Company, used in B8 (E518) BF 2 A A7
basic and diluted (loss) earnings %A AEG(EBE) R
per share calculation

BR(BER)EF

AREBEAARIEEAREE(BR) B
THRIBIA T BURRTHE

2020 2019
—ECEH —T-NF

RM’000 RM’000
BHEFT EMFr
(11,192) 1,312

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FA{ERT B SREARREE(EE)
shares for basic and diluted (loss) ARz BRI TR E
earnings per share calculation

Number of shares
REE

390,000,000 390,000,000

Diluted (loss) earnings per share are same as the basic (loss)
earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in existence during the years ended 30 November 2020
and 2019.

11. DIVIDENDS 11.

The directors of the Group did not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 30 November 2020 (2019: Nil).

HREEZZ_ZFR=_FT-NF+—A8
“t+HILFE TECHABEREYE
ZEBE  BREB(ER) ENEGRE
A(EE)BFER -

IRE

AEFBEENTEANBE_T_TF
T-A=THALFERNRERE(=F
—NEF SE) e
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. Y% - HBRRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor Computer
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicle equipment Total
BE BEBR
BT HEMEEE BAERE RE ERRE st
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000
ST T ST SEFIL Vil VT
Reconciliation of carrying FEEHR —
amount - Year ended HEZT-NE1+-A
30 November 2019 =+ALEE
At 1 December 2018 RZZ-\E+=f—-H 1,279 68 121 47 63 1,578
Additions AE = = — 898 1,076 1,974
Depreciation bl (28) (11) (17) (167) (83) (306)
Disposals HE — — (1) = = (1)
At 30 November 2019 RZE-NE+—A=1H 1,251 57 103 778 1,056 3,245
Reconciliation of carrying  REEHEK —
amount - Year ended HE-Z-EE1-A
30 November 2020 =tALEE
At 1 December 2019 R=E2-n&+-FA—-A 1,251 57 103 778 1,056 3,245
Adjustment upon adoption of R EIE BT R & 8
IFRS 16 (Note 2) 165 6 AR (HH2) - - - (778) - (778)
Additions hE - - - - 39 39
Depreciation e (28) (1) 5) - @17) (321)
At 30 November 2020 R-B-2E+-A=1A 1,223 46 98 — 818 2,185
At 30 November 2019 RZEB-NET-A=1H
Cost AR 1,390 112 267 1,133 1,292 4,194
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE (139) (55) (164) (355) (236) (949)
1,251 57 103 778 1,056 3,245
At 30 November 2020 R-E-Z£+-F=1H
Cost R 1,390 112 267 - 1,331 3,100
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE (167) (66) (169) - (513) (915)
1,223 46 98 — 818 2,185

At 30 November 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s

motor vehicles held under finance leases amounted to

approximately RM778,000 are presented under right-of-use

assets upon the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 December 2019.
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RIE—NF+-HA - BRABEBESER
SEAE RZFT-AF+—-A=THAHR
BEREBEREZASEAEZREENY
FHEET778,000T N EAEEER 25



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets

13. EAEEEREREE

EREEE

Office Motor

premises vehicles

WAEYE RE
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BHTFT BT BT
At 1 December 2019 RZZE-hFE+=HA—H - - —

Upon adoption of IFRS 16 RN BBR B 75 R 5 2RI S8 1615

(Note 2) (Hisz2) 168 778 946
Addition NE — 194 194
Depreciation e (115) (187) (302)
At 30 November 2020 R-Z=Z2F+—-H=+H 53 785 838
Cost DN 168 1,327 1,495
Accumulated depreciation E&tine (115) (542) (657)
Net carrying amount IRIERE 53 785 838
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13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Lease liabilities

P

Current portion B

ok
=
)

=i
Non-current portion e ED

13. FRAREERHEEE &)

HE&R®
2020
—Z= $
RM’000
B¥TT

223
743

966

The Group leases various office premises and motor vehicles
for its operation and the lease terms ranging from one to nine
years. The total cash outflow for lease was approximately
RM251,000 for the year ended 30 November 2020.

At 30 November 2020, the weighted average effective interest

rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 4.8% per annum.
Commitment under operating leases

At 30 November 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which

are payable as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive

AEEREZREPDEMRZRAELMM
EEZA HENT—ZEAFTE - RE
E-TTF+—A=THILLFE HE
BIR & 48 FR R R 5 #251,0007T °

R-ZF_FHF+-A=1H A5EHE
BENMEFHERFFES4.8%

REHERE

—hF+—A=1+H  AEERT
ARENEEHE RN 2 RRKEREN
FARERIT

E_FEFERF(BREREMF) 49

104
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BLEE
Internally
developed
technologies
IR 2B
RM’000
R FT
Reconciliation of carrying amount — REELR —
Year ended 30 November 2019 HE_ZT-hF+—A=1+RHLFE
At 1 December 2018 RZZE—NF+=A—H 129
Additions NE 3,669
Amortisation By (350)
At 30 November 2019 RZZ—NF+—A=+H 3,448
Reconciliation of carrying amount — FREEYER —
Year ended 30 November 2020 BE-_Z-_ZTF+—A=1tHLEE
At 1 December 2019 RZZE—hF+=A—H 3,448
Additions NE 3,685
Amortisation 5 (1,930)
Impairment loss BB EE (2,226)
At 30 November 2020 R-ZE-_EF+—HA=+H 2,977
At 30 November 2019 RZZE-NFE+—A=1H
Cost B AR 4,697
Accumulated amortisation Kt (1,249)
3,448
At 30 November 2020 R=B=-ZF+—-A=+H
Cost B 8,382
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss 25t #E$4 MREE 12 (5,405)
2,977
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Year ended 30 November 2020 HHE —E-ZTF+— A =+HILFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Development costs represented costs incurred at the
development phase of certain new technologies, which are
capitalised and amortised (if applicable) in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 30 November 2020, all the intangible assets are available
for use. The carrying amounts of intangible assets yet to be
available for use at 30 November 2019 were approximately
RM2,754,000.

The Group carried out annual impairment test for intangible
assets where an indicator of impairment appears by comparing
their recoverable amounts to their carrying amounts at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group, through its subsidiaries in Malaysia, is engaged in
the provision of system integration and development services
and maintenance services (the “System Integration CGU”).
In view of the deteriorating economy and the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 30 November 2020,
the management considered that there is impairment indicator

under the System Integration CGU.

The management assessed that certain technology developed
in previous years may not be easily meet the customers’
increasing expectations and requirements for their IT needs in
the future market development, in particular, after the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic. According, the recoverable amount of
these technologies under the System Integration CGU which
its fair value less costs of disposal was zero. Impairment loss
on these technologies of approximately RM2,226,000 was
recognised for the year ended 30 November 2020.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

14.
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PSR AN E T H R 2 PP R P EE
EZRAE - EERE&EMIEE R E2
P& & RTBUR T IAE AL R # 36 (f i
A) e

RNZE-_TF+—A=+H FiAEEFE
EAFHER - BE_ZE-NF+—H
= tHEEFEzHARAIHERANEREE
2 BREEX) 5%2,754,0007T ©

AEBEANBERARLRELEE A
WElerEEEEE  AEEEHRRED
SETFRERERH

RNEEBBEM N RN B A R
ERERFES REAEREEESRS
([RGEBEABECELSEMN]) - EREEZ
TTF+—A=ZTHILFELEEBET
{EtRCOVID-19ZBERE - ERERA/R
GERCHESCELBNTFEAREREE-

MEEETE - LEMNCOVID-19%& 1518
Bk BAFERENE TR
EARNTSERTMETPHEEANR
RERKBEIGMOEEEER - AR5
EREELEBEM FZERMHATKRE S
HAIRFEREEERAR) AT - ZER
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14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

At 30 November 2020, the Group further assessed the
recoverable amount of the System Integration CGU based
on the value-in-use calculation using pre-tax cash flow
projections covering a 3-year period which is provided by
the management. The estimated revenue and costs for each
individual intangible asset were based on management
expectation. As the recoverable amount of the System
Integration CGU was approximately RM4,791,000, no further
impairment loss should be recognised for the remaining non-
current assets allocated to the System Integration CGU at 30
November 2020.

Key assumptions and inputs used for value-in-use calculation

are as follows:

Average gross profit margin S EF
Average growth rate T RE
Discount rate B3R &

14.

BIEE &)

RZZB-_Z2F+—-HA=+H AEERE
EEEREN=FHRMRSRERAE
EREEFE  E—FAERREARE
ELBEMMNAIKROSHE - REELEEN
EAFRAMK A AEEENTARRE
e mREAGEARSELEMARE
SR RFMEA791,000T - AR ZZ
“EF+—A=THEARIETRAE
EREELFUNBTIRDEERRE
—HRERE

PR PR E S E 8 B BB TS AR
T :

28%
21%

9%

The management considered that any reasonable possible
change in the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation on the System Integration CGU would not cause a

further impairment loss.

At 30 November 2019, the management is of the view that
(i) there is no impairment indication for the intangible assets
already in use and (ii) the intangible assets yet to be available
for use were not impaired as their recoverable amounts exceed

their carrying amounts.

BEEERR  EGEARESELEMMNE
REEFEMRANIZRRIOEBEMNE
ERREMES) - TEEBUE—FRERIE

RZBE-NEFE+—-—HA=+H EEERR
(WEERZEPEETERENRK(i)HE
A EEEEBEREE  AMMERZE
WEEYERE -
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Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. ME AT
Details of subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as RBEAR B RARGEISAT -
follows:
Paid-up/
Place of registered share Attributable equity interest Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital held by the Company place of operation
WEAR AR ALY B/ EMRA KRR EGER FTEEHRCERY
2020 2019
—g-27 [EESUR

Directly held by the Company

AR AERRE

Excel Elite Global Limited The BVI United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
(“Excel Elite") ("US$") 13,890

Excel Elite Global Limited SBRAHE 13,890 7T RERK &%
(TExcel Elite]) E34)

Indirectly held by the Company

ARAFERE

Mixsol Malaysia RM200,502 100% 100%  Provision of system integration and
computer related services, Malaysia

Mixsol Bk 51200,5027T REZGELREMBBARE - BRAS

Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100%  Provision of IT products and

(“Concorde”) services, Malaysia
Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd. &3 5#500,0007C REENRRER KRS - SRS
(TConcorde))

Tandem Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100%  Provision of management advice and
consultancy services for computer
software and information technology,
Malaysia

Tandem SRES $51%500,0007T REFHEERBGRAANRZERERR

BHARE  BRAD
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. ES RHMEWKIE
2020 2019
—EIEH —E-NEF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
HiF BT ST
Trade receivables from third parties EBWE=F 285
PR IR 7,393 7,258
Less: Loss allowance W IR 29 (999) (238)
16(a) 6,394 7,020
Other receivables H fth fE W R IE
Deposits, prepayments and other e AR EA 16(b)
receivables FEM TR IR 1,130 2,638
7,524 9,658

(a) Trade receivables from third parties

The Group normally grants credit periods of up to
30 days, from the date of issuance of invoices, to its
customers as approved by the management on a case by

case basis.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss

allowance) based on invoice date at the end of the

(a) EUE=FEZEWNRE

AEE - RRENERAELRTF X
TREEEMHEABERDAAHE
STEE30RZEEM -

RBEHR REZEHE L2 E
2 W R (B B R AR ) 2 ARk

reporting period is as follows: DT
2020 2019
—EoBE —T—NF
RM’000 RM’000
BT EEFr
Within 30 days 30K 1,672 614
31 to 60 days 31E60Xk — 70
61 to 90 days 61290k — 398
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 151 1,030
181 to 365 days 181£E365K 913 4,705
Over 365 days HBiA365K 3,658 203
6,394 7,020
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Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade receivables from third parties (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) by due date

16. BFRHAEWREZ)

(a)

BURE=F B2 BWREE)

RBEHR A HE s 2 &
7 W R (B B R AR ) 2 BRik

is as follows: DT :
2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-NEF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥%Fr BT T
Not yet due AR HA 1,672 614

Past due: png=

Within 30 days 30K 90 70
31 to 60 days 31E60K — 398
61 to 90 days 61E90K 29 —
91 to 180 days 91E 180Kk 112 1,190
181 to 365 days 1812365K 833 4,545
Over 365 days 365K 3,658 203
4,722 6,406
6,394 7,020

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
at 30 November 2020 were Goods and Services Tax
receivables and prepayment to a company which
provides IT outsourcing services to the Group of
approximately RM649,000 (2019: approximately
RM1,762,000) and approximately RM11,000 (2019:
approximately RM761,000), respectively.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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RZEZZF+—-—A=THZE
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. BREEREGHERE
LIABILITIES
2020 2019
—EC-THF —E-NEF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr BT
Contracts in progress ETHRHELD
Contract costs incurred plus recognised & Z& 4 & LA NIE R
profits less recognised losses to date AR S B EREE 60,473 76,393
Less: progress billings received and B B FEYGE E ROE
receivable (62,451) (67,143)
(1,978) 9,250
Analysed for the reporting purpose: ESRE BB Z DT -
2020 2019
—EEF —ZE-NF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
M et B¥TFr EMFr
Contract assets ABHBE 17(a) 166 9,400
Contract liabilities EHEE 17(b) (2,144) (150)
(1,978) 9,250
There was no retention held by customers on services contracts RZEBZZER_ZF-NAF+—A=+
at 30 November 2020 and 2019. B BFIERRBESOFERE
At 30 November 2020 and 2019, the contract assets and 75@:%:%@& —T—AF+—A=+
liabilities are expected to be received or settled within 12 CAWBERBEEHAR12(EA RIKE

months. ﬁféﬁ °
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Year ended 30 November 2020 HHE-—Z_-_ZF+— A=+ FE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. BREEREGHNER®)
LIABILITIES (continued)
The movements (excluding those arising from increases and HEZZT-_ZF+—A=+HILFE
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract BRI E R E 155 BERER S ET
assets and contract liabilities with customers within IFRS 15 NMZEHEEZANEERANARESR
during the year ended 30 November 2020 are as follows: (T\@Tﬁ*ﬁ@ﬁ&‘lﬁlibﬂ&ﬁ?%iZ@
T :
(a) Contract assets (a) EBHEE
2019
—E-NF
RM’000 RM’000
BMFT BT
At the beginning of RS B
the reporting period 9,400 4,658
Recognition of revenue TR — 9,217
Transferred to trade receivables HYEEHEKIE (9,234) (4,475)
At the end of the reporting period A ¥R&EHIR 166 9,400
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2019
—T-NEF
RM’000 RM’000
BMF T 1. &5
At the beginning of RS BT
the reporting period 150 57
Receipt in advance TEWGRIE 2,144 150
Recognition of revenue R I (150) (57)
At the end of the reporting period W ¥R&HIR 2,144 150
At 30 November 2020, the aggregate amount of RZZEZZF+—A=1+H" 5
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance ERERNBENEETNRZE Tﬂf@
obligations is approximately RM13.0 million (2019: #) 5 5%13,000,0000t (= FE— A
approximately RM17.7 million). The Group expects F AEEA7 700,000T) © NEE
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied FEHOEZEREXNNBHREEHR
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue SERERN —FHERREANRR
within one year or less. RlEs o
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Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

18.

19.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 18. ZRHFIRITAER
The Group had obtained banking facilities on issuance of AEBEHBTHRETAEEBRITIREZ
bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy banks. Such RITERIVSRTTHRE - BERMEBHXR
facilities were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances. HISRITHEBRPTERR - IAEEEITEAS
At 30 November 2020, the Group had utilised approximately HmME AEER_Z_ZTF+—HF=+
RM309,000 (2019: approximately RM708,000) under such ARmEFLBTRITERESAZMEE
facilities for issuing bank guarantees to customers in respect of THEH309,000L (= FE—NF : 458
the Group’s fulfilment of related contracts. 708,0007T) °
BANK DEPOSIT AND BALANCES AND CASH 19. BTERRERURERS
2020 2019
—z-2%F S
RM’000 RM’000
BT EMFr
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERE 10,311 4,565
Short-term time deposits EEE BTE 8,565 11,697
18,876 16,262

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
floating bank deposit rate. Short-term time deposits are made
for three months, and earn interest at the prevailing deposit
rates. The Group can withdraw the short-term fixed time
deposits anytime before the maturity date without incurring any

significant bank charges.

RITRESUAERE B FBRITERAEL
B RBIDAE - EMEHREFERRE=
BA - XARITERMERERAE - AE
B R A 21 HA B B B B £ BT B E AR AR
MAEELEMERNRITER -
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Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-TF+— A=+ H It FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZREMENSRE

2020 2019
—E-EBH —T-NEF
Note RM’000 RM’000
K et BT BT
Trade payables from third parties ENE=r2E85 20(a)
EARE 2,763 1,045
Other payables H{th B+ FRIE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A & H A T RIE 3,037 2,644
Accrued listing expenses R EmAX — 2,699
3,037 5,343
5,800 6,388
(a) Trade payables from third parties (a) ERE=AzEZEMARE
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RIEER REZHHIAH 2 E S ER
the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows: HIEZERBOSWT -
2020 2019
—E_BF —T—NF
RM’000 RM’000
BT EFr
Within 30 days 30K 2,666 —
31 to 60 days 31E60K 34 40
61 to 90 days 61Z290K — 400
91 to 180 days 91E180K —_ 570
181 to 365 days 181£E365K — —
Over 365 days HBiR365K 63 35
2,763 1,045

The credit term on trade payables is up to 90 days.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2020 i E - ZE-FF+— A=+ H It FE

21. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 21. FFEHBE
2020 2019
—E_EF —T-NEF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr BEFT
Interest-bearing borrowings (secured) =t 2fE & (HIKIR) 853 857
Carrying amounts of interest-bearing BRI TFHERZFEEE
borrowings that are repayable (Note) — BREIfE(K1:E)
Within one year —FR 12 38
One to two years —EMEF 49 39
Two to five years MERF 159 131
Over five years BRAF 633 649
853 857
Note: The interest-bearing borrowings, with a clause in their terms Hiat - st REBEZEFR—KERGE TERANER

that gives the lender an overriding right to demand repayment
at their sole discretion, are classified as current liabilities even
though the management does not expect that the lender would
exercise its rights to demand repayment. The amounts due are
presented based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

The interest-bearing borrowings represent amounts due
to a bank in Malaysia with a maturity period of 15 years at
30 November 2020.

At 30 November 2020 and 2019,
borrowings bore a floating interest rate at the bank’s Base

the interest-bearing

Lending Rate minus 2.10% per annum. The effective interest
rate on interest-bearing borrowings at 30 November 2020 is
4.0% (2019: 4.8%) per annum.

The interest-bearing borrowings are drawn under a banking
facility. The interest-bearing borrowings are secured and
guaranteed by:

(i) properties owned by the Group with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RM1,223,000 (2019:
approximately RM1,251,000) at 30 November 2020,
as set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements; and

(i)  guarantees provided by Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr.
Siah Jiin Shyang, the ultimate controlling parties and the
directors of the Group.

—YIHER - TIRE IR ESEN

BEEEEWITEHERABITEEZRE

KR B BEEDYEARDA

& - BIHRIE N IBEZ EE R R ATH TR
ERABEY -

%l“l‘/l_,{ g?ﬁ —7—7£'E+ ﬂ +H ‘J
Hl - FHRI5F Z BN —RBRIEERTT
ZFRIE o

m_:_qiﬁ TE-NF+—HA=+
B it EEERRBITEEERAR 2 )28
FIERMEFER210%:HE8 - R_T_ZTF
+—A=+H HEEBEZERNERF
FEAQ%(ZF—NIF : 4.8%) °

AEBERBERRITHERNZMEE - &
EREZERARERDOT

() RZZEZFTF+—HA=+H 4%
EMEEMEZARMFENTE
1,223,000 ( = F— N F : #1558
1,251,0000C) * EAFHBEHNGE
HEHmERME12 &

(i) AAEBEERERSTEREZEER
Fo i R SR RE S A P IR M 2 HEAR o
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22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22, BMEHESHE
At 30 November 2019, the Group had obligations under finance RZE—NF+—A=+H KEEET
leases repayable as follows: BECBHERERANT :
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
HEHERE REAERBERE
RM’000 RM’000
FEEFT BT
Amount payable: JERTRRIA
Within one year —FR 178 136
One to two years —EMF 189 155
Two to five years MERSF 480 430
Over five years HBRAF 134 128
981 849
Future finance charges RRMEER (132)
Present value of lease obligations HMEEEZHE 849
Less: Amounts due for settlement J8 - 1218 A A EI H
within 12 months BEZHIE (136)
Amounts due for settlement M12@ A& B EEE
after 12 months I8 713
The Group leased 4 motor vehicles under finance leases with ANEFBRERMEBAEREMERHFE - Ty
average lease term of 84 months. It is secured by the lessor’s HEA84EA - HUAHEHAAHWBEEELE
charge over the leased assets. At 30 November 2019, the Z2EWRAER R_T—NF+—A=+
effective interest rate for the obligations under finance leases is H BEHEEFTZ2ERFENRAE6.9%

6.9% per annum.
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23. DEFERRED TAX 23.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising
from depreciation allowance for the years ended 30 November
2020 and 2019 was as follows:

IR B IH

UTRARBE_T_ZFR_FT-NF
THA=THLFEEFEREELEZR
SEZEEHAREE

2020 2019

RM’000 RM’000

BT ST
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 #4214 12
Charge to profit or loss iR ikt 5 —

At the end of the reporting period & ER 12 12
Unrecognised deferred tax assets AERELEHEBEEE

At 30 November 2020, the Group has tax losses arising in
Malaysia of approximately RM1,774,000 (2019: Nil) that can
be offset against future taxable profits of the respective
subsidiaries, which can be carried for 7 consecutive years
of assessment (i.e. from year of assessment 2021 to 2027).
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the tax losses because it is not probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the
benefits therefrom.

24. SHARE CAPITAL

R-ZT-_ZTE+—A=+H AXEERE
RPESRE AR BIIEEE A 51,774,000
T(ZF—NF: #)RREHESHE
RAIMRRERT S F) - PSS EE (A
ABEEH 2 L NF
[E) - BRAEBRARRTAR GEESREF
FimFIAB A A AR B - S ERR
HEBRRECHEELE -

Number of Equivalent
shares to RM
REE BT HERE%
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each &M E{EO0.01E T2 LA
Authorised: SETE
At 1 December 2018, RZZE—N\F+=A—H-
30 November 2019 and —E-hF+—A=THEK
30 November 2020 —E_TF+-—-A=+H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 10,596,200
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBEHT
At 1 December 2018, RZE—-N\F+=A—H"
30 November 2019 and —E-NFT+—A=+HEK
30 November 2020 —E_ZTF+—-HF=1+H 390,000,000 3,900,000 2,067,000
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25.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the
Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

25. ANATFZHEMRRE

REBERREHIZBERE - Aaw it
IR R R E BRI

2020 2019
—E-EH —T-NEF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hiat B¥Fr EMFT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERB AR Z’E 15 57 57
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other T TR R E A E
receivables HIE 18 18
Due from a subsidiary JE W — P BT /BB A R R IE 10,582 10,582
Bank balances and cash IRITEB LIRS 9,117 15,163
19,717 25,763
Current liabilities rEBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A & H At T 5IE 492 3,067
Due to subsidiaries N NG E e 1,191 1,196
1,683 4,263
Net current assets REBEEFE 18,034 21,500
NET ASSETS EEFE 18,091 21,557
Capital and reserves BEARR#FE
Share capital A& 24 2,067 2,067
Reserves w1 25(a) 16,024 19,490
TOTAL EQUITY AR 18,091 21,557

AP BERRAER =T _—F A =+HH
BESeHAEREETE IHTINES
REFEE -

This statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 February 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Chong Yee Ping Liu Yan Chee James

EEIR 2285
Director Director
BFE EE
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25.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

25. RNATRZHBERRER &)

Movements of the reserves (a) REEZ2H
Share Capital ~ Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RiAEE EAGE 5] @it
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FETFTT FEFL B8 FEFT
(Note 26(a)) (Note 26(b))
(Hiit2ea)  (Hiit26(b))
At 1 November 2018 RZZE-\&+-A—H 28,732 57 (7,997) 20,792
Loss for the year and total ENBEREN
comprehensive expenses HEATAE
for the year — — (1,302) (1,302)
At 30 November 2019 and RIZE-NF+-A=+BRK
1 December 2019 —Z-NF+-A-H 28,732 57 (9,299) 19,490
Loss for the year and total ENBEREN
comprehensive expenses HATAE
for the year — — (3,466) (8,466)
At 30 November 2020 R-Z2-BE+-H=18 28,732 57 (12,765) 16,024
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26. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

It represents the excess of the net proceeds from
issuance of the Company’s shares over its par value.
Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
Articles of Association, it is distributable to the
Company’s shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.
Capital reserve

For the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group and the statement of financial position
of the Company, it represents the aggregate amount
of the issued and paid-up share capital of the entities
now comprising the Group before completion of the
Reorganisation (as defined in the prospectus issued
by the Company dated 29 September 2018) and the
Company, respectively, less consideration paid to
acquire the relevant interests (if any) upon completion of

the Reorganisation.
Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

26. f#fE
(a)

(b)

(c)

A= 18

B BEERARBETRN ZFAF
RIBFREBEHE®ERSD - RIEFM
SHBERRARR ZEBEIZM
A - HARBARENE-—REBB
BPREEEINAKZNBREE
% BIEAI DK T AR RIMER °

EXEE

RARBZHGAMBRRREARR
BZHBHRRARME - EXRRRED
AERTEXREAEERARRMT
BEBPA_ZE-/\FNALA=-TAIA
WHERER)RKARAEEZE
BRARRZEEITRARKAE
B RN TR EAR KRB R
s BEHREME) -

B

AEENERFRBEEREAEE
MEBARMEHRREENMEER
ZH - FREESVBHERME2M
HOETTHERERE -
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27. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

(i Upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 December
2019, the Group recognised right-of-use assets
with a total capital value of approximately

RM946,000.

(i)  During the year ended 30 November 2019, the
Group purchased three motor vehicles and
approximately RM848,000 were settled through

obligations under finance leases.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

Details of changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities are as follows:

Year ended 30 November 2020

27. ZEREREBRZBINEH

(a)

(b)

FEFBRERSF

(i) R-ZE—NhF+-—A—HERX
FABIBRB R s 2 RSB 1657
% ANEEBRRENBENS
#:946,0007THfF AREEE °

(i) REBE-_ZT—h&E+—A=+
AIEFE  AEBEET=H
RE WEBARMERERETMN
#)EE 848 00045 E -

METHELECEBEYER

AEBEREERDEECABEEDF
BT
Bz—=—TF+—HF=+AHLHEF
B

Non-cash
changes
FREEH
At At
1 December Adoption 30 November
2019 Cash flows of IFRS 16 Addition 2020
R=ZB-h#&F BB E R-ZB=-Z2F
t=HA-H ReRE  ERFE16% #n +-A=+AH
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
V-1 894 BT V-7 -89 -1 8 BT
Interest-bearing TERE
borrowings 857 (4) - - 853
Obligations under finance ~ BAMESE
leases 849 — (849) — —
Lease liabilities HEAE — (202) 1,017 151 966
Total liabilities from REEBELL
financing activities BERE 1,706 (206) 168 151 1,819
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27. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE 27. MEBERERZENER ()
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBHEEZAGHERE)
activities (continued)
Year ended 30 November 2019 HE_Z—NF+—A=1+RHLFE
Non-cash
changes
#Reg
At Addition of At
1 December finance 30 November
2018 Cash flows leases 2019
RZT—N\F RZE—NF
+=A—H Rene HIREHEE +-A=+H
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
BETT ST ST BETIT
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 894 (37) — 857
Obligations under finance BEMEEMR
leases 130 (129) 848 849
Total liabilities from MEERSHELY
financing activities BERE 1,024 (166) 848 1,706
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28. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 28. BHAE RS

BEaMBRREMBIABREZR
5/ BRI REBBUTRAB RS :

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties:

(a) Transaction with a director of the Company

On 20 March 2018, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang to lease the property
commencing on 1 April 2018. For the year ended 30
November 2020, the related cash outflow for leases
was approximately RM103,200 (2019: approximately
RM107,500).

(b) Remuneration for key management personnel
(including directors) of the Group

(a)

(b)

BEAQAR-—REEZXS

R-ZE—NFZA-+H ~EE
HSRE R LRI VHEERE 8=
T \FUA—BREMAEZWE -
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+—A=1THL*F
E HBEEEReREBNAES
¥ 103,200 (= FE— A F : H &
107,5007T) °

AEBIEERAS(BREESR)2
)]

2020 2019
—g=%% e

RM’000 RM’000
BH¥FiT BHFT
Salaries, allowances and e R RHEMBEYRET
other benefits in kind 1,802 1,547
Contributions to defined TE BB RET B2 3k
contribution schemes 63 58
1,865 1,605

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out
in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Personal guarantees obtained

The ultimate controlling parties have provided unlimited
personal guarantees in respect of the interest-bearing
borrowings obtained by the Group from a bank in
Malaysia as set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(c)

EXZFME—THBENGEAH
MR

EWEZBEARER

kR e M BERRM T2 AE - &
REETERARER —RSBRA
DRITMGZABEREHERE
AFEAR -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT &

155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR MY A

Year ended 30 November 2020 2 —ZE-ZEF+— A=+ HILFE

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing borrowings, obligations under finance leases, lease
liabilities, restricted bank balances and bank balances and
cash. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise and maintain finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial instruments such as trade
and other receivables/payables and contract assets and

liabilities which arise directly from its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risk management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks

to a minimum level as follows:
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s (loss) profit before income tax
would decrease/increase by approximately RM18,000 (2019:
approximately RM9,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk in existence at that date. The 100 basis points
increase or decrease represents management’'s assessment of
a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the period

until the next annual end of the report period.
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29.
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29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting in
a loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets and
contract assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account
the value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is summarised as

29. ¢RIEREEEE

ZRBEKE)

FERR

EERBEEBASRERTEEERM
AEEFBRZEE  ERAKERTER
ZRB - GEMBRRTERZIEREE
RaWBEEZREEGIRRERE) XX
AEBEEREZEERR - EPLEFAR
PR EMER R R EMEEY 2 EE - K
SEMAESRAERERREMRANT :

follows:
2019
—ET-hF
RM’000 RM’000
B% T FEFiT
Contract assets BHEE 166 9,400
Trade and other receivables B 5 M EMEWFIE 7,476 9,625
Restricted bank balances SRR AIIRITAE 309 708
Bank balances and cash ﬁEﬁmﬁ%&fﬁfﬁ 18,876 16,262
26,827 35,995
Trade receivables and contract assets ESEKRSERSHEE
The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third AREBERAINEERTFZE=ZFETR

parties. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits for the customer. The receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis by senior management and the

Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
and individual credit limit assessment which is mainly based on

the Group’s own trading records.

5 EEREIEMAMHELH - ARRIEFE
BERPZEEERRREPERERGE
RE - BRAERREHASREEERER
£ MAKREZZRRBY TEX -

AEEZEERREERTFERFESR
2 TP Ffr%‘tﬂ%&léﬂif&@@hﬁﬁ
nergEERkR  BREEREK - EFZ
=M E?*Eﬁfxiﬁ%%ﬁ%&&1/\%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ETRHE R EEIRERAREARSY
ZRBFEERIME
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29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2020, the Group had a concentration of credit
risk as approximately 54.1% (2019: 57.2%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets were due from the Group’s
largest trade debtor and contract assets and approximately
94.7% (2019: 95.3%) of the total trade receivables and contract
assets were due from the Group’s five largest trade debtors and
contract assets.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables and contract assets are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment. The expected loss rate used
in the provision matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past three years
and adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s estimate on future economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. There
was no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.
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29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets using a provision matrix

at 30 November 2020 and 2019 is summarised below.

At 30 November 2020

29. cRIEREEEERBE &)

EERRE)
EZEURFBAREHNEE (&)

JiN

.

A\—B—F

—EEFR_FT-NAE+—A=1AH
CRBREEEENEREERRANEE
ERkRIEREEEREBENT o

R-ZE-ZEF+—-H=+H

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance amount impaired
AHEERX REELSH BERE LAREFE EERE
% RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
F¥Fr F8F F¥Fr
Trade receivables ERER
Not past due R H — 1,672 — 1,672 No f&
1 - 180 days past due BME1E180H — 231 — 231 No &
181 - 365 days past due  #Hj181%365H 2% 850 (17) 833 No &
Over 1 year past due BEBR—F 21% 4,640 (982) 3,658 No &
7,393 (999) 6,394
Contract assets EREE — 166 — 166 No &
At 30 November 2019 RZBE-AF+—H=+H
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
BHEEEX HREBELHE EEREE LEREDFE EERE
% RM000 RM’000 RM’000
BHEFT HEFT HETFT
Trade receivables ERER
Not past due K Hf — 614 — 614 No &
1 - 180 days past due #EI1E180H — 1,658 — 1,658 No £
181 - 365 days past due  #Hj181E365H 2% 4,638 (93) 4,545 No %
Over 1 year past due BB R—F 42% 348 (145) 203 No £
7,258 (238) 7,020
Contract assets BHEE — 9,400 — 9,400 No £
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance
of approximately RM999,000 (2019: RM238,000) on the trade
receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year is summarised below.

29.

TREREEEERBE®)

FERBRE)
EZEURFBAREHNEE (&)

RZZZZF+—A=+H ' ' A%£EE
NEZERFEERERBENTE
999,000 7T ( = &F — /L &F - 5 # 238,000
JL) o FRNE SRR IEZ BIEREZEHN
R BEAL -

2020 2019
RM’000 RM’000
B¥TFr BT

At the beginning of & B
the reporting period 238 —
Increase in allowance B E LN 761 238
At the end of the reporting period s IR 999 238

At the date of this annual report, approximately 42% of the trade
receivables at 30 November 2020 have been settled.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables
and contract assets at 30 November 2020 (2019: Nil).

Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low credit risk
based on the borrowers’ strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on other receivables is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience over the past three
years and the financial position of the counterparties, adjusted
for forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which the
counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of default
of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default
in each case. The management of the Group considers the
ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after taking
into account the financial position and credit quality of the
counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.
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29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash

The management considers the credit risk in respect of
restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash is
minimal because the counter-parties are authorised financial

institutions with high credit ratings.
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility. The Group has no specific
policy for managing its liquidity. The undiscounted contractual
maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, based on the earliest date on which the
Group is required to settle, is summarised as below:

29.

tREREEEERBE &)

FERBR(E)
BRHBITHBURRITEGREE

BEEERR  XROBITERARIBRITE
BRBAe 2 EERREBY  RERXSY
FHREAREENR IR S EBEE -

RBE SRR

AEBEZERRARBESHEERERN
W& @2 P18 - AW EAREKER
Hi#Es RAGHRAEESRAE
ZARBHRAWBHRR (RIBAEEREE
Z&FEE)BAmT

Total
Total contractual On demand
carrying  undiscounted or less than 1to Over
amount cash flow 1 year 5 years 5 years
KR
Crobk RER
REAE ERNNES
RM°000 RM000 RM’000 RM°000 RM000
BRFR FHFr FHFr FHFr FRTx
At 30 November 2020 R=B-BF+-A=tH
Trade and other payables S REMERFE 5,800 5,800 5,800 — -
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) T B & (#f:t) 853 853 853 - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 966 1,095 270 757 68
7,619 7,748 6,923 757 68
At 30 November 2019 RZZ-NFt+—-A=tH
Trade and other payables BHREMERFE 6,388 6,388 6,388 = =
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) 5t Bf& & (#fst) 857 857 857 = =
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEHEEE 849 981 178 669 134
8,094 8,226 7,423 669 134
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 2. TREAREEBEERBE ®)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRRE)

Note: The amounts repayable under bank loan agreement that include Bt RBETERNDZEREEZRELEAL
a clause that gives the bank an unconditional right to call the [TEERFD1FE BRI - inzEa R
borrowings at any time are classified under the category of “On TR 1T AR MR 4 R B B 3B I B R 2 1K
demand or less than 1 year”. However, the management of the o A - AEEEBRERBRITHET
Group does not expect that the bank would exercise such right to STEMRBERENERER - Bt - ZEE
demand the repayment and thus, the borrowings, which included (BRI E) B RIBERITER R HTE
the related interest, would be repaid according to the below THEEMRER

schedule as set out in the bank loan agreement as follow:

Total
Total contractual
carrying undiscounted Less than

amount cash flow 1 year
REET
BHBEE
RERAE
RM000 RM000 RM’000 RM000 RM’000
BRI BT BRI BRI BRI

At 30 November 2020 HR=B=FF+-A=+1H
Interest-bearing HEEE
borrowings 853 1,096 M 311 744

At 30 November 2019 R-Z-h&+-A=1+H

Interest-bearing FTEEE
borrowings 857 1,235 79 316 840
Fair value ATE
All financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at FrEcRMEERSRBENKREEAR-T
amounts not materially different from their fair values at 30 ZEERZE-NFT—A=THZAF
November 2020 and 2019. BEARITR 2 &5 -
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30.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for equity owners. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividends to equity owners, call for additional capital from
equity owners or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 30 November 2020 and 2019.

30.

EXrER

AEBERER BERARREAEERFE
REEB 2N YAEREE ARER
Heo AEEEBHEARRBERIEL AR -
BREAEREEASZNRE  REREES
ANEWREEIINEARKHEEE - LR E
BoREBEEZTZ_TER-_F-NF+—
R=1TRHIEFE EEBE « BERHEfF
IR o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
0% B R

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial
information for the year ended/as at 30 November 2018, 2019 and
2020 is extracted from the consolidated financial statements in this

TIRAKRER SO A EMRFREZCTIRRE
REENRBBEZHE -BE—F—\F . _F
—NERZZ_ZF+-A=+THLFE/NZ
BZHBERDMBEEARNFRZEAMBEHRE -

annual report while the relevant information for the years ended/as at mMBE-_E—A"Fk-_ZT—+F+—A=+HI1t

30 November 2016 and 2017 is extracted from the Prospectus.

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 November
AEEBE+T-A=THLEEZEE

FE/NZBZHBAERBEREBRER -

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—E-EF ZT-NF —T-N\F —T—tF —T—RF

RM’000 RM000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

BEFT HEFT HETFT EETFT EEFT

Revenue &= 10,011 19,428 47,581 38,929 13,986

(Loss) Profit before taxation  BR%i AT (&8 )RR (11,192) 1,383 10,266 16,604 8,448

Income tax expenses Fri8Bimx — (71) (2,414) (71) (59)

(Loss) Profit for the year EE(F58)RA (11,192) 1,312 7,852 16,533 8,393

Other comprehensive Hiv2ERE (%)

income (expenses) 36 (354) — — —
(Loss) Profit and total FE(BR)BNR
comprehensive (expenses) 2 (B k#

income for the year k-] (11,156) 958 7,852 16,533 8,393

Assets and liabilities of the Group as at 30 November
AEERT-A=+RAZEERERE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

“E-RF “ThF —EN\F —E—+F —Z—RE

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000

BF¥FT FHEFT HETFT bid S8

Non-current assets *RBEE 6,000 6,693 1,707 2119 3,551

Current assets RBEE 26,875 36,028 44,032 23,789 9,296

Total assets BEE 32,875 42,721 45,739 25,908 12,847

Current liabilities RBAE 10,046 8,766 13,352 21,861 4,913

Non-current liabilities FRBEE 755 725 115 136 163

Net assets BEEZFE 22,074 33,230 32,272 3,911 7,771
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